
DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERE D A CCOUNTAN T S 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally acce pted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and ott1er irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that a re 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentat ion of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules made there under. 

Registered Office: Office No. 11, First Roor, The Regency Building, National Ubrary Road, Near Nandi Cinema Hall, Sandra (West), Mumbai. 400 050. 

Telephone No: (022) 2651 3538 / 2651 3539 I Firm Mall: lnfo@dda.finn.in I Website: dda.tirm.in 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financi al 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting est imates made by the 
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information re·quired by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountfng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, and 
its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to Note 15 in the Financial Statements which indicates that the Company 
has accumulated losses and its net worth has been completely eroded, the Company has 
incurred a net cash loss during the current year and, the Company's current liabilities exceeded 
its current assets as at the balance sheet date. These conditions indicate the existence of a 
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. However, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a 
going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the provisions of 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued 
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; 

II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 



(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply w ith the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) The going concern matter described under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in 
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. 

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st 
March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a Di rector in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito r's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any as at March 
31, 2016 on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investo r 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR DALAL DOSHI &ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.: 121773W 
Chartered Accountants 

VIRAL DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 105330 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2016 



ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABP REALTY 
ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
3tst MARCH, 2016; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) The Company did not have any Fixed Assets during the year. Therefore, the provisions 
of clause 3 (i) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 a re not applicable to the 
Company; 

(ii) The Company did not have any Inventories during the year. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3 (ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company; 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) of the Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 
2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) a) According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in 
depositing, wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Income 
Tax, Sales Tax, Vat, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with 
the appropriate authorities; However, there were no amounts outstanding as at 
the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date 
they became payable. 

b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income 
Tax, Sales Tax, ·Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess; 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information anct.,explanations given to 
us, the Company has not accepted any loans from any financial institution or banks or 
issued debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (vii i) of the Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 



(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the Management; 

(xi) The Company has not paid I provided managerial Remuneration hence, the provisions 
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the 
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in 
the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party 
Disclosers specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit 
Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to t his extent, the provisions 
of Clause 3(xiii) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provision of 
clause 3 (xiv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 201 6 are not applicable to the 
Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 
(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) ln our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.: 121773W 
Chartered Accountants 

/t 
VIRAL DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 105330 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2016 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ABP REALTY 
ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of ad equate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable finan cial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal fi nancial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued 
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materia l respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial con trol over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles anp that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financ~al Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over fi nancial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the- risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate in ternal financial 
contro_ls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on th_e internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

VIRAL DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 105330 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2016 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 

Reserves and surplus 

Current liabilities : 

Short-term borrowings 

Other current liabilities 

II. ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and bank balances 

Short-term loans and advances 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

Finn Registration No.121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

VIRAL DOSHI 

Partner 

Membership No: 105330 

Mumbai 
Date : 18-05-2016 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Note No. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

1 to 2 

3 to 16 

As At 

31st March,2016 

~ 

5,00,000 

(1,81,99,766) 
(1,76,99,766) 

2,24,597 
1,76,59,773 

1,78,84,370 

1,84,604 

71,687 

1,12,917 
1,84,604 

1,84,604 

As At 

31st March, 2015 

~ 

5,00,000 

(1,81,80,282) 

(1,76,80,282) 

2,24,597 

1,76,54,496 

1,78,79,093 

1,98,811 

85,600 

1,13,211 

1,98,811 

1,98,811 

For and on behalf of the board 

)A~HOD 
Director 

DIN:03147669 

PRAPHUL SHINDE 
Director 

DIN: 03140671 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the ear ended 3151 March, 2016 
~-------------------

Particulars Note 

No. 

INCOME 

Other income 9 

TOTAL REVENUE 

EXPENSES 

Other Expenses 10 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 

Tax expense : 

Current tax 

Excess /(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

Deferred tax 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Earning per equity share 

Basic & Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No.121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

VIRAL DOSHI 

Partner 

Membership No: 105330 

Mumbai 
Date: 18-05-2016 

11 

1 to 2 

3 to 16 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

f 

1,313 

1,313 

19,190 

19,190 

(17,877) 

(1,607) 

(19,484) 

(0.39) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

f 

81,609 

81,609 

(81,609) 

(81,609) 

(1.63) 

For a nd on behalf of the board 

JASM~OD 
Director 

DIN: 03147669 

,.....---.u..~-
PRAPHUL SHINDE 

Director 
DIN: 03140671 



AllP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U 67190MH2007 PTC172 390 

· -~------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~ 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31"' March, 2016 

I. Cash flows arislni !rom operatini activities 

Net Profit 1 (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Add 1 (Less): 
Interest Income 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 

Chanies in workini capital· 

(Increase) 1 decrease in Loans and advances 
Increase in Trade Payabies & Other Payables 

Cash generated from Operations 

Net income tax (paid) I refunds 

Net cash flow from I (used in) operating activities (A) 

II. Cash flows adsini from Investing activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Interest Income 
Net cash flow from I (used in) Investing activities (B) 

Ill. Cash flows adslni from Fjnandni actjvities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Proceeds of short term borrowings 

Net cash flow from I (used in) financing activities (C) 

Net increase I (decrease) In Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components pfCasb and bank balances (Refer Note 7) 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current account 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

VIRAL DOSHI 

Partner 

Membership No: 105330 

Mumbai 

Date : 18-05-2016 

As at 31st March, 2016 
( ~) ( ~) 

(19,464) 

-
. 

(19,464) 

294 

5 277 
5,571 

(13,913) 

-
-

(13,913) 

. 

-

(13,913) 

85,600 

71,687 

8,270 

63,417 

71,687 

As at 31st March, 2015 
( ~) ( ~) 

(81,609) 

-
. 

(81,609) 

22473 
22,473 

(59,136) 

. 
(59,136) 

(2,50,000) 

(2,50,000) 

(3,09,136) 

3,94,736 

85,600 

8,270 

77,330 

85,600 

For and on behalf of the board 

lk THOD 
Director 

~669 

PRAPHUL SHIN DE 

Director 

DIN:03140671 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '1' 
Corporate Information 
ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited is a subsidiary of Public Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of investment advisors, consultants 
for real estate and infrastructure funds including but not limited to advise on investment by the aforesaid funds in all kind 
of real estate and infrastructure projects. 

NOTE 'Z' 
Significant Accounting Policies 

I. Basis Of Preparation Of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been prepared and presented complying the section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in accordance with the applicable 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Guidance Notes and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies 
Act, 2013. 

11. Use Of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the results are known I materialized 

111. Revenue Recognition 

IV. 

v. 

A. Revenue from Consultancy & Advisory Services: 
Revenue from consultancy & advisory services are accrued and accounted for as and when the services are 
provided and the revenue for the same is certain. Where the income I revenue is contingent or uncertain, 
recognition for the same is postponed to the extent of significant uncertainty. 

B. Interest Income 
Interest is recognised on time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable 

C. Others: 
Other Revenues 1 Incomes and Costs 1 Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or 
incurred. 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

VI. Taxations 
Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit Provision for current tax is made on 
the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The deferred tax asset 
and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and 
unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a virtual certainty of its realization, 
supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of other timing differences are recognized only to 
the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts of 
deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization. 

Excess I short provision for taxation are recognised on completion of ncessary taxation proceedings (viz. revised 
returns, assessments, etc.) 

In case, the Company is liable to pay income tax under Section 115JB of Income Tax, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of 
tax paid in excess of normal income tax is recongnised as on asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there is 
convincing evidence for realisation of such asset during the specified period. MAT Credit entitlement is reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date. 

VII. Impairment of Assets 
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment 
loss is charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which as asset is identified as impaired. The impairment 
loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable 
amount 

VIII. Earning Per Share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earning per shares, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 

IX. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets 
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is present 
obligation as a result of past events and its probable there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are 
not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statement Contingent assets are neither recognised not disclosed 
in the financial statements. 



ABP REALTY ADVJSORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

-CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE'3' 

SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED 

250,000 (P.Y. 250,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP 

50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each fully paid up 

Total 

3.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 

and at the end of the year 

Number of Shares at the Beginning 

Add/(Less) : 

Issue during the year 

Buyback during the year 

Conversion during the year 

Number of shares at the end of the reporting year Total 

3.2 Equity Shares held by its holding company or Its ultimate holding company, 

subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company 

Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 

3.3 Equity Shareholders holding more than 

five percent of holdings 

Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 
Total 

3.4 Terms 1 Right attached to Ordinary Equity Shares: 

Total 

31st March, 2016 
Nos. %of Holdings 

50,000 100% 

50,000 100% 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

25,00,000 

25,00,000 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

31st March, 2016 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

3151 March, 2016 
(Nos) 

50,000 
50,000 

As at 

31'1 March, 2015 

~ 

25,00,000 

25,00,000 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

31st March, 2015 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

31st March, 2015 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

3151 March, 2015 
Nos. %of Holdings 

50,000 100% 

50,000 100% 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in 
the ensuing annual general meeting. 

NOTE'4' 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss 

As at 

3151 March, 2016 

~ 

(1,81,80,282) 

(19,484) 

(1,81,99,766) 

As at 

31•1 March, 2015 
'{ 

(1,80,98,673) 

(81,609) 

(1,81,80,282) 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '5' 
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

Unsecured loans repayable on demand: 
-from related party (Refer Note 12) 

NOTE '6' 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Other payables : 
- Business Advances 
-Others Miscellaneous 

NOTE'7' 
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

- in current account 

NOTE '8' 
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Loans 
(Unsecured, considered good) 
- to related parties (Refer Note 12) 
• to others 

Other advances 

Total 

Total 

Income tax deducted at source (Net of Provision ~Nil, P.Y. ~ 14,250) 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t' 

2,24,597 
2,24,597 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t' 

1,76,00,000 
59,773 

1,76,59,773 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
t' 

8,270 

63 417 
71687 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
t' 

108367 
4 550 

1,12,917 

1,12,917 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t' 

2,24,597 
2,24;597 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t' 

1,76,00,000 
54496 

1,76,54,496 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t' 

8,270 

77,330 
85,600 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

1,02,959 

1,02,959 

10,252 
10,252 

1,13,211 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LlMITED 
CIN: U67190MHZ007PTC17Z390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '9' 
OTHER INCOME 

-Interest on IT Refund 

NOTE '10' 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Legal and Professional Fees 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 

Footnote: 
Auditor's Remuneration (included in other expenses) 

Statutory Audit Fees 
Limited Review Fees 
Service tax on above 

Total 

Total 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2016 
r 

1,313 
1,313 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2016 

~ 

1,710 
17,480 
19,190 

31st March, 2016 

r 

6,000 

840 
6,840 

Year Ended 

31•1 March, 2015 
r 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2015 
r 

31,462 
50,147 
81,609 

31st March, 2015 
t 

6,000 
9,000 
1,854 

16,854 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CJN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31"' MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '11' 

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Profit I (Loss) after tax ( ~) 

Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos) 

Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share of~ Hl 1- each) 

Basic & Diluted 

NOTE'12' 

Related Party Disclosures 

A. Name of related parties and description of relaUons 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 

Hubtown Limited 

Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 

Citygold Education Research Limited 

Citygold Farming Private Limited 

Citywood Builders Private Limited 

Devkrupa Build Tech Limited 

Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech Limited 

Halitious Developer Limited 

Headland Farming Private Limited 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

Heet Builders Private Limited 

As at 

31st March, 2016 

(19,484) 

50,000 

(0.39) 

India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 

]oynest Premises Private Limited 

As at 

31" March,2015 

(81,609) 

50,000 

(1.63) 

Sheshan Housing And Area Development Engineers Limited (Up to Aprill, 2015) 

Twenty Five South Realty Limited 

Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 

Urvi Build Tech Limited 

Varna Housing Limited 

Vega Developers Private Limited 

Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 

Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 

B. Transactions wlth related panles 

Particulars 

Loans received 1 recovered 1 adjusted 

Hubtown Limited 

Loans repaid 1 given I Adjusted 

Hubtown Limited 

India Development and Construction Venture Capital 
Private Limited 

Loan 
Hubtown Limited 
(Payable) 

India Development and Construction Venture Capital 
Private Limited 
(Receiva ble) 

Footnote: 
a. Previous year figures ar e gi ven in brackets. 

Realted party relation 

Holding Company 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Amount 
~ 

(1,00,000) 

(350,000) 

5,408 

224,597 
(224,597) 

108,367 
(102,959) 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U67190MH2007PTC172390 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '13' 

Contingent Liabilities 
The company does not have any contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by 
the auditors. 

NOTE '14' 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all the items of Current assets, Current libilities and Loans and advances 
continues to have a realisable value of at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

NOTE '15' 

The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted In complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's 
management ts, however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company is in the process of procuring new 
business, the proceeds of which when fructified, woul'd result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not 
consider the eros ton of the net worth as an impediment. to tts status as a going concern. 

NOTE '16' 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

VJRALDOSHI 

Pa rtner 

Membership No: 105330 

Mum bat 
Da te : lB-05·2016 

For and on behalf of the Board 

~ 
oW~ r ,:,;.~, 
y--:" . .. \ 

r1l '!)'~;}~ ~ 
~~ .J ~), JASMIN RATHOD 

~Ni~]"i ,A Director 

=~~ 
PRAPHUL SHIN DE 

Director 

DIN: 03140671 



ABP REALTY ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U67190MH2007PTC17Z390 

Inter company transactions durine the financial ear 2015-16 And the balances as on 31st March 2016 
NAME OF THE GROUP COMPANIES Relation Hoidin~ LIABILITIES LIABILITIES ASSETS 

SCHEDULE VI GROUPING As on ST - Borrowing Equities L & A - Current 
31st March, 2016 Percentage Loan taken from ESC/ PSC/ Capital in Loan to Related Parties 

(%) Related Parties )Vs& Firms 

Hubtown Limited Subsidiary 100% 2,24,597 5,00,000 -

Sub~i!:liaries 

India Devel. & Constn. Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary 100% - - 1,08,367 

TOTAL 2,24,597 5,00,000 1,08,367 

Encl. Ledger confirmation 

For DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the board 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.:121773W 

~·~-~ 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS f.,'~ \'D '~ •So~. 

-vOSHI &4 fQ'\ )'!' 
~ •;)\ 

"?-"- J',£ IJJ < 

JAS~HOD 
~ 0 l (t \ :-r 

<:> F!RIJ REGN. N ~ \ ~ ;; 
VIRAL DOSHI ... 1 ·0 '-' ~ ·C> 'J 2177JW . ~I * PARTNER ~ MUM8A! * - Director 
Membership No. 105330 ~ ~ DIN:03147669 

"o ~"' 0' 4ccou"' -
~ 

PRAPHUL SHINDE 
Mumbai Director 
Date : 18-05-2016 DIN:03140671 





















































L. J. KOTHARI 
B.COM, F.C.A. 
9920424040 

L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

GANDHI MANSION, 3Ro FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P. 0., 
MU MBA I- 400 002 • Tel.: 2205 5916 • E-mail : ca_lalltkothari@yahoo.co.in 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO 
The Members of Citygold Education Research Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Citygold Education Research Limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2016, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. · 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these fi nancial statements to 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and appli'cation of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

. operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the 
accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report. 

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal .financial 
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 

· view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Attention is invited to Note 29 in the financial statements with regards to the Company's 
investment in subsidiary Jineshwar Multitrade Private Limited, carried at Rs. 27 Crore in the 
balance sheet as at March 31st, 2016. We are unable to obtain sufficient appropr iate audit evidence 
with regards value of such long term investment. Consequently, we are unable to state whether any 
provision for diminution is required to recognize decline in value of investment, if any. 

Our opinion is not qualified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Other LegaJ and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the "Annexure A", statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order. 

II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b J In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Los.s, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31st, 
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31st, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over fi nancial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in "Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31st, 
2016 on its financial position in its financial statements 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transfer red to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31st, 2016. 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
FIRM REGISTRATION No: 105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

L J 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 30917 

Place : Mumbai 
Date :20th May, 2016 



"ANNEXURE A" REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION 
RESEARCH LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation, of fixed assets. · 

(b) The Fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during 
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, 
the frequency of verification is reasonable. 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 7 on fixed assets 
to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) (c) of the said Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

ii. The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts. 

iii. The Cor.npany has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. 

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the 
provisions Of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public within the 
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the 
extent notified. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3 (v) of the said Order are not applicable 

. to the Company. 

vi. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the provision 
for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

vii. (a) According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in depositing, 
wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Sales Tax, Vat, Service Tax, 
Custom Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, as applicable. 
There were no amount outstanding other than an amount of Tax deducted at Source of~ 
52,950/- as at the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the 
date they became payable. 



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess other than those mentioned below: 

Name of Nature of Period to Amount~ Forum where the dispute is 
the statute dues which the pending 

amount 
relates 
(F.Y.l 

Income Tax 143 (3) 2009-10 10,17,08,240 Commissioner of Income tax 
Act, 1961 (appeals) (Preferred by Dept.) 

Dy. Commissioner of Income 
Income Tax 271 (l)(c) 2009-10 Amount not tax 
Act, 1961 ascertainable 

Commissioner of Income tax 
Income Tax 143 (3) 2011-12 12,63,710 (appeals) (Preferred by Dept.) 
Act, 1961 

viii. As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. Therefor 
the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out 
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xi. The Company has not paid f provided managerial Remuneration hence, the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the provisions 
of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the section 
188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required under Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party Disclosers specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies· (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 
of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 



xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

' 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 20th May, 2016 



. ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") · 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Citygold Education 
Research Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Pinancial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

· adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financiaJ information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal fi nancial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

. adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and· fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. · 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over fi nancial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.:105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

~L. _sqz 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPRI.ETOR 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May, 2016 



Citygold Education Research Limited 

CIN: U80100MH2006PLC158595 

Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2016 
Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 
Reserves and surplus 

Non·Current Liabilities 
Other ion~ term liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Short-term borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other current liabilities 

II. ASSETS 
Non·Current Assets 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 

Total 

Non-current investments 
Long term loans and advances 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Cash and bank balances 
Short·term loans and advances 
Other current assets 

Total 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

Note No 

1 
2 

3 

4 
5 
6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 

Anexure I 

1 to 31 

-

As at 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

34,300,000 
322,030,697 

356,330,697 

330,003 

723,370 
146,520 

556,173,397 
557,373,290 
913,703 987 

. 
270,016,000 

60 532,107 
330,548,107 

565,433.223 
273,825 

14,819,833 
2,628 999 

583,155,880 
913,703 987 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

34,300,000 
330,850.161 

365,150,161 

330,003 

. 
79,200 

553,017,029 
553,426,232 
918,576,393 

1,839,187 
270,016,000 

79,048,647 
350,903,834 

548,575,590 
796,229 

14,712,333 
3,588,407 

567,672,559 
918,576,393 

For and on behalf of the board 

lA1 tp 

PRAPHUL ;)niNU.t 

Director 
DIN:03140671 

..J,..C.. SJ SUSHAA BRE 
( Dire or 
Dl · 549 



Citygold Education Research Limited 

CIN: U80100MH2006PLC158595 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the ear ended 31st March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. INCOMES 

Revenue from operations 
Share of Loss from )oint Venture and Partnership Firm 
Other Income 

Total 

II. EXPENSES 

Cost of Operations 
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 
Finance costs 
Other expenses 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Loss before tax 
Tax expence: 

-Current tax 
- Deferred tax 

Total 

- Excess Provision of Tax for earlier year 
Net Loss for the year 
Earning per equity share (Face Value of~ 10/- each) 

Basic and Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements . 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

Note No 

14 

15 

16 
17 
18 
19 
7 

20 

Anexure I 

1 to 31 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

2,800,000 
(5,146) 
84,168 

2,879,022 

24,536,540 
(16,857,633) 

180,820 
2,075,863 
1,839,187 

11,774,777 
(8,895,755) 

(176.39) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

6,355,000 
(6,300) 

857,890 

7,206,590 

55,878,177 
( 47,369,769) 

1,041.260 
2,697,644 
2,120,936 

14,368,248 
(7,161,658) 

(143.23) 

Forand on behalfofthe board 

PRAPHUL SHINDE 
Director 

DIN: 03140671 

~U~MBRE 
Director 

DIN: 03143549 



Citygold Education Research Limited 
CIN: U80100MH2006PLC158595 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31"1 March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. Cash flows adsjog from operating activities 
Net Loss before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 

Add I (Less): 
Interest paid 
Depreciation and Amortisation 
Share of Loss from )oint Venture and Partnership Firm 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 
Add I (Less): 
(Increase) I Decrease in Inventories 
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Current Liabilities 

(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and other receivables 
(Increase) I Decrease in Loans and advances 
Direct Taxes Paid 

Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities 

H. Cash flows arising from Investing activities 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Proceed from Long term Investment 
Net Cash flow in the course oflnvesting Activities 

111. Cash flows arising from Financing activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Interest paid 
Share of Loss from )oint Venture and Partnership Firm 
Increase I (Decrease) in Unsecured Loans 
Increase I [Decrease) in Business Advance 

Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities 

Net Increase In cash and cash Equivalents (I·+ 11 + HI) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11) 
Cashon Hand 

Bank Balances in Current Accounts 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No.105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

-

31st March, 2016 
Amount 

(~) 

119,998 
1,839,187 

5,146 

(16,857,633) 
3,839,060 

959,408 
18,516,540 

r31209l 

[735,370) 
(5,146) 

723,370 

Amount 
m 

(8,895,755) 

1,964,331 
(6,931,424) 

6 426166 
(505,258) 

[17146) 

(522,404) 
796,229 

273,825 

78,580 

195,245 

273,825 

-

31st March, 2015 
Amount 

(~) 

684,213 
2,120,936 

6 300 

(47,369,769) 
(12,307,228) 
16,695,602 

[16 000) 

(68,841) 
(6,300) 

48 115 000 

Amount 
(~) 

(7,161,658) 

2,811,449 
(4,350,209) 

[42 981 395' 
(47 331,604) 

(16,000) 

48 039,859 

692,255 
103,974 

796,229 

76,511 

719,718 

796,229 

For and on behalf ofthe board 

~IN DE 
Director 

DIN: 03140671 

r-1 

~ 
@sDUMBRE 

Director 
DIN: 03143549 
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. Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

1 Corporate Information 

Citygo!d education research Limited is a limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
Companies Act, 1956. The object of the company is to establish an university, to disseminate and advance 
knowledge and promote educational activities and to acquire, sell, construct, exchange, design, develop, promote 
or otherwise deal in the land commerical and residential complex ,integrated townships etc. 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

I. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting 
Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules read with Rule 7 to the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014 in respect of section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. The financials statements are 
prepared under the historical cost conversion, on an accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies 
applied are consistant with those used in the previous year. 

All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per 
the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance as set out in the Schedule III, to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Operating Cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the specific project/ 
contract/ Service and extends upto the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally 
applicable to the respective project. 

II. USE OF ESTIMATES 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles 
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known f materialized. 

Ill. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will accure to the 
Company and revenue can be reliably measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate 
collection will be made and that there is buyer's commitment to make the complete payment 

A. Revenue from sale of properties frights 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the 
company and the revenue can be reliabaly measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the 
ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyer's commitment to make the complete payment. 

B. Profit I loss from partnership firms I association of persons: 
Share of profit I loss from partnership firms f association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the 
financial year of the Firm f AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited accounts, which 
is considered as a part of other operating activity. 

C. Interest 
Interest Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable. 

D. Other Income 
Other incomes and costs/expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 
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IV. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION/ AMORTISATION 
a. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 1 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

b. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method method on the basis of useful life of the asset in 
the manner specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on 
sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the date of such addition, or upto the date of such 
sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

V. INVENTORIES 
All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 

'Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the company has not entered into 
sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' 
also include initial project costs that relate directly to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred 
unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land I 
rights, value of FSI, materials, services and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the 
projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

VI. PROJECT EXPENSES 
In respect of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the 
Inventories capitalised. Expenses capitalised to inventories include applicable borrowing costs till the 
date of completion of the construction project 

VII. INVESTMENTS 
Investments are classified into Current and Non Current I Long Term Investments. Current investments 
are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Long term investments are stated at cost A provision for 
diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value oflong term investments. 

VIII. BORROWING COSTS 
Interests and other borrowing costs (including front end processing fees and related professional and 
other costs) attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of construction I 
development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted. Front-end fees, processing fees and other 'one time' charges are amortised 
over the period of the related borrowing, but not exceeding a period of three years. Other borrowing 
costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement. 

IX. SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company has a single segment namely "Educational and construction of Educational Institution". 
Therefore the company's business does not fall under different business segments as defined by AS- 17 -
"Segmental Reporting" issued by ICAI. Further, the Company's operations are restricted to a single 
geographical segment. 

X. EARNING PER SHARE 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period. For 
the purpose of calculating diluted earning per shares, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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XI. TAXATION 
Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit Provision for current tax is 
made on the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The 
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized, only if 
there is a virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. At each Balance Sheet 
date, the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization. 

In Case, the company is liabile to pay income tax under Section 115 JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), 
the amount of tax paid in excess of normal tax is recognised as an assets (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if 
there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balancesheet date 

XII IMPAJRMENT OF ASSETS 
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An 
impairment loss is charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which the asset is identified as 
impaired. The impairment Loss recognized in prior periods is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimate of recoverable value. 

XIII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is 
present obligation as a result of past events and its probable there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statement. Contingent assets are 
neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements. 

:· ' 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'l' 
SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
2,25,500 (P.Y. 2,25,500) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 
100/- each 
1,12,500 (P.Y. 1,12,500) 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of ~ 100/- each 

3,28,700 ( P.Y. 3,28,700 )Preference Shares of~ 100/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

2,25,500 (P.Y. 2,25,500) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 
1001- each, fully paid 

1,12,500 (P.Y. 1,12,500) 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of~ 100/- each 

1.1 Reconciliation ofthe number of shares outstandinR at the beginninR and at the end ofreportinR year: 
31st March 2016 

Equity Preference Preference Equity 
(Convertible) (Non-

Convertible) 

Number of Shares at the Beginning 50,000 225,500 112,500 50,000 
Add/(Less) : 
Issue during the year -
Buyback during the year . 
Redemption during the year -
Conversion durinl! the vear -
At the end of the reportin~vear (Nosl 50 000 225 500 112 500 50,000 

As at As at 

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 
( ~) ( ~) 

500,000 500,000 

22,550,000 22,550,000 

11,250,000 11,250,000 

32,870,000 32,870,000 
67,170,000 67,170,000 

500,000 500,000 

22,550,000 22,550,000 

11,250,000 11,250,000 
34,300!000 34,300!000 

31st March 2015 
Preference Preference 

(Convertible) (Non-Convertible) 

225,500 112,500 

- . 
- . 

. 

. 
225,500 112 500 

1.2 Shares held by Its holding company or its ultimate holding company subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding 
company: 

31st March, 2016 31st March 2015 
Equity Preference Preference Equity Preference Preference 

(Convertible) (Non- (Convertible) (Non-Convertible) 
Convertible) 

Holding Company of Reporting Company (HCRC): 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficial)' Owners 50,000 - - 50,000 - . 
Others 225,500 112 500 - 225,500 112 500 

Total 50,000 225 500 112 500 50,000 225,500 112 500 
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Notes to the finanda.l statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

1.3 Shareholders holding more than five percent of holdings : 

Equity: 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 
Equity Shares Total 

Preference Shares: 
Aiken Management and Financial Services Pvt Ltd 
Harekrlsh na Securities Pvt Ltd 
Empower India Limited 
Signora Finance Pvt Ltd 
Lilac Medicines Private Limited 
Sonai Cosmetic (Exports) Ltd 
Raw Gold Securities Private Limited 
Prabhav Industries Ltd 
Sonal Sil Chern Limited 
Sonallntematlonal Ltd 
Dynachem Pharmaceuticals Limited 
Preference Shares Total 

Preference Shares (Non-Convertible) 
Celestial Spaces Private Limited 
Preference Shares Total 

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 
Nos %of Holdings Nos o/o of Holdings 

50,000 100 50,000 100 
50 000 100 50 000 100 

20,900 9.27 20,900 9.27 
20,900 9.27 20,900 9.27 
41,700 18.49 41,700 18.49 
16,700 7.41 16,700 7.41 
20,900 9.27 20,900 9.27 
20,900 9.27 20,900 9.27 

8,400 3.73 8.400 3.73 
41,700 18.49 41,700 18.49 
12,500 5.54 12,500 S.S4 
16,700 7.41 16,700 7.41 

4,200 1.86 4,200 1.86 
225 500 100 225 500 100 

112,500 100 112,500 100 
112 500 100 112 500 100 

1.4 The lights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares Including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the 
repayment or capital : 

Equity Share 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders In the 
ensuing annual general meeting. 

In the event or liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Preference Shares 
8% Non cumulative convertible Preference Sha'res of~ 100 each. The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted Into fully paid equity shares of the 
Company on or after 1st Aprll, 2012 or on such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the 
Company for conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit The call option has however not been 
exercised by the Company till date. 

10% Non cumulative non convertible redeemable Preference Shares of~ 100 each. 

NOTE '2' 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Securities Premium Account 
3,38,000(P.Y.3,38,000) Preference shares sold at premium of~ 1,100/- per share 

Balance as per last Balance Sheet 
Add: Addition during the year 
Less :Deduction during the year 
Balance at the end of the year (A) 

Surplus in the statement of profit and Loss 
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 
Loss for the year 
Less :Deduction during the year 
Balance at the end of the year (B) 

NOTE '3' 
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES: 

Retention Money Payable 

Total (A+B) 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

371,800,000 

371,800,000 

( 40, 949,839] 
(8,819,464] 

(49,769,303) 

322,030,697 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

330,003 
330,003 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

371,800,000 

371,800,000 

(33,788,181] 
(7,161,658] 

(40,949,839} 

330,850,161 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

330 003 
330,003 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE '4' 
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
Unsecured Borrowings 
Loans from others repayable on demand (refer footnote} 

Footnote: 

Total 

Unsecured loan from the company carries an Interest of 19.50% and are repayable on demand. 

NOTE'S' 
TRADE PAY ABLES: 

Mlcro,Small and Medium Enterprises (refer footnote) 
Trade payable 

Footnote: 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

723,370 
723 370 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

146 520 
146,520 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

79200 
79,200.00 

As per lnfonnatlon available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises 
Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the 
auditors. 

NOTE'6' 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Statutory dues 
Advances received for projects from a related party 
Business Advance from Holding Company 
Advances received from Customer 
Interest Accrued but not due 
Other payables 
Coventurer Account Payable 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

78,047 
73,315,545 

377,078,000 
11,050,000 

2,755,550 
91,896,255 

556,173,397 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

303,323 
73,315,545 

1,608,000 
6,750,000 

615,372 
3,533,034 

466,891,755 
553,017,029 
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Notes to tbe flnanctal statements for tbe year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'S' 
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
(Non Trade, unless otheJW!se specifled) 

Investment In Equity Shares : 
270,000 (P.Y. 270,000) Equity shares of face value of~ 10/- each 

Jlneshwar Multitrade Private Limited (Refer note 29) 

Capital Investment In Partnership Firm (Refer footnote 8.1) 
M/s RJslng Glory Developers 

Capital Investment In )oint Venture (Refer footnote 8.2) 
Hinterland Fin trade JV 

Total 

8.1 Details of Investments made In capital of Partnership firm and Joint Venture: 
Partnership Firm 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safe~ZUard System Private Limited 
Citveold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Dlvlniti Projects Private Limited 
Halitlous Developers Limited 
Headland FarmlnR Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Twentv Five South Realtv Limited 
Subhsiddhl Builders Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Adajan] Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahemdabad) Plivate Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehsana) Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Suratl Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal [Vadodara] Private Limited 
I Joynes t Premises Private Limited 
Sunstream City Private Limited 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Whltebud Developers Limited 
Yanttl Butldcon Private Limited 

TOTAL 

8.2 Co· Venturer 
Hinterland Fin trade fV 

Name of Co- Venturer 

Citvgold Education Research Limited 
Rublx Trading Private Limited 

TOTAL 

NOTE'9' 
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Advances to land owners 
Security Deposits 

31stMarch 2016 
Capital Contribution Profit Sharing 

Ratio 
10 000 20.00% 
10 000 5.34% 
10,000 5.34% 
10,000 5.34% 
10 000 5.34% 
10 000 5.34% 
10 000 5.33% 
10,000 5.33% 
10,000 5.33% 

- 0% 
10,000 5.33% 

- . 
- -

- . 
- . 

20 000 10.66% 
10 000 5.33% 
10,000 5.33% 
10 000 5.33% 
10,000 5.33% 

160 000 100.00% 

31st March 2016 
Capital Contribution Profit Sbarlng 

Ratio 
6,000 60% 
4,000 40% 

10000 100% 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2 016 

(~) 

270,000,000 

10,000 

6,000 

270,016,000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

270,000,000 

10,000 

6,000 

270,016,000 

31st March 2015 
Capital Contribution Profit Sharing Ratio 

10000 4.78% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.77% 
10000 4.76% 

. . 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10000 4.77% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 

210 000 100.00% 

31st March 2015 
Capital Contribution 

6 000 
4000 

10 000 

As at 
31st Mar ch, 2016 

(~) 

60,499,241 
32,866 

60,532,107 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

60% 
40% 

100% 

As at 
31st Marcb, 2015 

(~) 

79,015,781 
32,866 

79,048,647 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'lO' 
INVENTORJES 

Incomplete Project, at cost (Refer foot note) 
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

565,433,223 

565,433,223 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

548,575,590 

548,575,590 

Foot note: Out of the above, Land admeasuring to 291.33 acres have been mortgaged In favour of ECL Finance Limited for loan availed by Heet Builders 
Private Limited and Vishal Techno Commerce Limited, a fellow subsidary. 

NOTE'll' 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 

Cash on Hand 
Balances with Bank 

on current Account 

NOTE'12' 
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

0 ther I oans and advances: 

Total 

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions~ 1,07,500/-, (P.Y. ~ 1,07,500/-) 
Advances to others 

NOTE'13' 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Other receivables 

NOTE'14' 
REVENUE FROM BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

Revenue from business operations 
Sale of Plot 

NOTE '15' 
OTHER INCOME 

Stamp duty refund Income 
Sundry Expenses written Back 

NOTE'16' 
COST OF OPERATIONS 

Land/Rights Acquired 
Other Direct development 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

78,580 

195,245 
273,825 

As at 
31st March, 20 16 

(~) 

4,819,833 
10 000,000 

14,819,833 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

2,628,999 
2,628,999 

Year Ended 
31st Ma rch, 2016 

(~) 

2,800 000 
2,8oo,ooo 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

59,189 
24,979 
84 168 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

24,536,540 

24,536,540 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

76,511 

719718 
796,229 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

4,712,333 
10,000 000 

14,712,333 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

3.588,407 
3,588,407 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

6 355,000 
6,355,000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

1357,890 

857 890 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~} 

55,272,065 
606,112 

55,878,177 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'17' 
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF WORK-IN-PROGRESS 
Opening Inventory 

- Incomplete Projects 
Less: Closing Inventory 

- Incomplete Projects 

NOTE '18' 
FINANCE COSTS 

Interest on : 
Loans 
Delayed payment on Taxes and Statutory dues 

NOTE '19' 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Professional Fees 
Filling Fees 
Brokerage Charges 
Legal Fees 
Security Charges 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (Included in the other expenses) 

Audit Fees 
Limited Review fees 
Service Tax on above 

NOTE'20' 
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Net Loss as per Statement of Profit and loss available for Equity Shareholders ~ 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year {Nos.) 
Earning per equity share (Nominal Value per share~ 10/-each) 
Earning before/ after extraordinary item: 
Basic and diluted ( ~) 

Year Ended 
31st Ma rch, 2016 

(~) 

548,575,590 

565,433,223 
(16,857,633) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

119,998 
60,822 

180,820 

Year Ended 
31stMarch,2016 

(~) 

1,065,519 
12,710 

230,000 
112,360 
541,810 
113,464 

2,075,863 

35,000 

35 000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

(~) 

(8,819,464) 

50,000 

(176.39) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

501,205,821 

548,575,590 
(47,369,769) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

684,213 
357047 

1,041,260 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

2,325,025 
43,303 

329 316 
2,697,644 

35,000 
15,000 

50000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(~) 

(7,161,658) 

50,000 

(143.23) 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
NOTE '21' 

Related Party Disclosures (As Per As -18) 
A. Name of related parties and description of relations 
Holding Company Hubtown Limited 
Subsidiary ]ineshwar Multitrade Private Limited 
Fellow Subsidiary Company ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 

Ackrutl Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Cirywood Builders Private Limited 
Devkrupa Build Tech Limited 
Div1nitl Projects Private Limited 
Gujarat Akrutl - TCG Biotech Limited 
Halitious Developer Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 
]oynest Premises Private Limited 
Sheshan Housing And Area Development Engineers Limited (Upto April1, 2015] 
Twenty Fifth South Realty Limited 

Firm in which Company is a 
Partner 

)oint Venture in wh lch 
Company is a Co·venture 

Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 
Urvi Build Tech Limited 
Varna Housing Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Vlshal Techno Commerce Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 

Rising Glory Developers 

Hinterland Fintrade JV 

BT 'h ransact:tons Wit d re ate 1 parties 
Particulars I Realted Party 

Business Advances Received/ Recovered/ Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Business Advances Jliven/ Repal d/ Ad i usted 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Advance towards oropertv 
]oynest Premises Private Fellow subsidiary 
Limited 

Share of loss from lolnt Venture 
Hinterland Fintrade JV joint Venture in which Company is 

a Co-venture 
Share of loss from Partnership Finn 

Rising Glory Developers Fellow subsidiary 

Capital Contribution In Partnership Firm 
Rising Glory Developers Fellow subsidiary 

Capital Contribution In [oint Venture 
Hinterland Flntrade ]V joint Venture in which Company is 

a Co-venture 
Balance Pavable as on 31st March 2016 

Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

]oynest Premises Private Fellow subsidiary 
Limited 
Rising Glory Developers Fellow subsidiary 

Hinterland Fintrade JV Fellow subsidiary 

Footnote: 
a. Previous year figures are given in brackets. 

Amount~) 

380,970,000 
(13 234 000) 

55,00,000 
[21 579 000) 

(90,784 455) 

4,500 
[6,3001 

646 
r-1 

-
flO,OOO) 

-
[6 0001 

377,078,000 
[16 08 000) 
73,315,545 

[73,315 545] 
10,646 

[10 000) 
91,896,255 

r 466,891 7551 

b. Related Party relationships are identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors 



Citygold Education Research Limited 
CIN: U80100MH2006PLC1S8S9S 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'22' 
a) The company has received permissions under Bombay Tenancy Agricultural Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for acquiring 
Agricultural Land in excess of ceiling limit upto 621.0801 hectors in the taluka Khalapur District Raigadh, Maharastra which are valid till 
year 2017. 

b) The permissions under Bombay Tenancy and Agricultural Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for acquiring Agricultural Land in 
excess of ceiling limit are subject to certain conditions imposed by the Government which state that the approvals / permissions under MLR 
Code, Restoration of Land to ST Act, BTAL ACT, Forests Acts, CRZ, NDZ and other similar laws wherever applicable are necessary. 

NOTE'23' 
Advance paid for purchase of land of current year~ 60,499,241/- (P. Y. ~7.90,15,781/-) includes as under: ~) 

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 
Advance paid to farmers for which no a~eement have been entered I 60 499 241 65 499 241 
Advances paid to farmers for which agreements have been executed in the name of 13,516,540 
company 

NOTE'24' 
Advances received include~ 7,33,15,545 received from )oynest Premises Private Limited, a body corporate with whom the company has 
entered Into a Memorandum of understanding for the )oint Development of an Integrated Townships 1 SEZ at Khalapur. 

NOT£'25' 
The Company has entered in as a Co- Venture in Hinter Land Flntrade )V and agreed to transfer Land admeasuring to 155 Acres (approx.) 
along with the amounts received against the said land in the earlier years as per the terms and conditions agreed upon. 

NOTE'26' 
The Company is in the process of acquisition of land 1 properties. Some ofthe lands purchased standing In the name of nominees of Company 
are pending for necessary permissions from the Revenue Department 

NOTE'27' 
Trade payable, Loans and advances, received and paid. are subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments. 

NOTE'28' 
In the opinion of The Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current and Non Current Assets, Current and Non Current Liabilities 
and Loan and Advances continue to have a reallzable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the balance sheets. 

NOTE'29' 
The Company has invested Rs. 27,00,00,000 in )ineshwar Multitrade Private limited and thereby holds 96.43 %of Equity Share Capital of the 
said company. The financial statements as on 31st March 2016 of the investee company are not available. However, the management is of the 
view that there Is no permenant diminution in value of Its long term investment Purther, due to non- availability of financial statement of 
In vestee company, the company has not prepared consolidated financial statement 

NOTE '30' 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (NOT PROVIDED FOR): 

~) 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March, 2016 31st March 2015 

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of:-
On account of properties purchased pending registration and other formalities under Amount not Amount not 
different statutes, for which confirmations are pending. with regards to consideration paid ascertainable at present ascertainable at 
for the purchase ofland throu11.h a11.~egator. ore sent 
Income Tax Matter under Appeal with CIT for the F.Y. 2.009-2010 (A. V. 2.010-11) 1017 08 240/- 9,79,58,240/-
Income Tax Matter under Aooeal with CIT forthe F.Y. 2011-2.012 r A.V. 2.012-131 12 63 710/- 12 63 710/-
Income Tax Matter under ufs 271 (1) (c) for the F.Y. 2009-2010 (A.Y. 2010-11) Amount not 

ascertainable at present 

On account of Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company to ECL Finance Limited on 
behalf of Heet Builders Private Limited and Vishal Techno Commerce Limited, a fellow 1,700,000,000 1,41,00,00,000/-
subsidary. 

Note: Interest / Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The company has taken the necessary steps to 
protect its position with respect to the above referred claims, which in Its opinion, based on professional/ legal advice, are not sustainable. 

NOTE'31' 
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable with current year figures in the 
fiancials statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Finn Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

I 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place : Mumbal 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

For and on behalf orthe board 

~ 
PRAPHUL SHINDE 

Director 
DIN: 03140671 

~UMBRE 
~Director 



Citygold Education Research Limited 
CIN: U80100MH2006PLC158595 

• NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 

Note: 7. FIXED ASSETS (In~ 
GROSS BLOCK DEPREICATION NET BLOCK 

PARTICULARS As at Additions Deductions/ As at Upto Provided Deductions/ Up to As at As at 
1st April, during Adjustments 31st March, 1st April, during the Adjustments 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 

2015 the year 2016 2015 year 2016 2016 2015 

Tangible Assets: ~ 

Computer 2,580,602 - - 2,580,602 2,580,602 - - 2,580,602 
I - -

Furniture 15,396,585 - - 15,396,585 13,557,398 1,839,187 - 15,396,585 - 1,839,187 

Office Equipments 727,762 - 727,762 727,762 - - 727,762 - -

GRAND TOTAL 18,704,949 - - 18,704,949 16,865,762 1,839,187 - 18,704,949 - 1,839,187 
Previous year 18,704,949 - - 18,704,949 14,744,826 2,120,936 - 16,865,762 1,839,187 -
Note: Depreciation has been provided on Straight Line Basis. Also see Significant Accounting Policies. 



Citygold Education Research Limited 
CIN: U80100MH2006PLC158595 
INCOMPLETE PROJECT AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2016 
SITE · KHALAPUR 

(In~~) 

OPENINGWIP TRANSFERED TO 
INCURRED DURING CLOSING WIP 

PARTICULARS 31stMarcb, STATEMENT OF 
THE YEAR 31st March, 2016 

2015 PROFIT AND LOSS 

CIVIL CONSTRUcnON EXPENSES 
Civil Construction Expenses 56,022,075 752.483 - 55,269,592 
Electrical Expenses 33,170 446 - 32,724 

PURHCASES REGISTER 
Purchases for civil materials 15,898,105 213,542 - 15,684,563 

Other Construction Expenses 
Land development Expenses 279,855 3,759 . 276,096 
Survey charges 801,349 10,764 . 790,585 

CONSULTANTS 
Professional Fees 50,665,938 680,540 . 49,985,398 
Consultancy Charges 301,446 4,049 . 297,397 
Legal Fess 2,754,381 36,997 . 2,717,384 

LAND COST 303,386,286 4,385,545 24,536,540 323,537,280 

INDIRECT EXPENSES 
Conveyance 12,250 165 . 12,085 
Petrol Expenses 67,146 902 . 66,244 
Miscellaneous Expenses 62,279 837 . 61,442 
Repairs & Malntanance 209,486 2,814 . 206,672 
Security charges 2,442,678 32,810 . 2,409,868 
Tea, Coffee, Lunch Expenses 79,379 1,066 . 78,313 
Transport charges 115,188 1,547 113,641 
Vehicle Expenses 25,455 342 25,113 
Photocopy Charges 49,771 669 49,102 
Hire Charges 244,136 3,279 240,857 
Housekeeping Charges 1,428,946 19,193 . 1,409,753 
Labour Charges 374,288 5,027 . 369,261 

INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES 
Interest Paid 113,271,843 1,521,457 . 111,750,386 
Bank charges 50,140 673 . 49,467 

Total 548 575 590 7 678 906 24,536 540 565 433 223 





























































































INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO, 

THE MEMBERS OF, 
DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

' 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the act'') with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Iridia, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts)Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit We have 
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section143 
(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 



control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, and its Joss and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred 
to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as 
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we 
give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

II. As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informationand explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. 



ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

? 
MUKESHK GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 
Place : Mumbai 
Date: 30/08/2016 



"ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORTONOTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

b) The company has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable interval and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

c) Total Assets of company includes immovable property also and the title deeds of 
immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

(ii) The company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance sheet 
date; 

(iii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013; 

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is 
an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the company and 
the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventories and fixed assets and for sale of 
goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of records of the books and 
records of the Company, and according to the information and explanation given to us, 
we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to 
correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as mentioned in sections 73 
and 7 4 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder to the extend notified; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records 
and hence such the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the 
company; 

(vii) a. According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in 
depositing, wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Investor 
Education and Protection Fund, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other 
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There have been delays during 
certain months in depositing Income Tax Deducted at Source. There were Tax 
Deducted at Source ~523930/- Service Tax ~1047513/-,TDS on Interest 
~923123/- and WCT ~484287outstanding at the last day of the financial year 
for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable. There 
were no dues during the year towards Employees State Insurance and Excise 
Duty; 

b. On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom-outy, Excise Duty or Cess oth.er than 
mentioned below: 



Statute and 
Financial Disputed 

Forum where 
nature of Section dispute is 

dues 
Year Dues 

pending 

Income Tax 
Commissioner of 

143(3) 2011-12 20,823,010 Income tax 
(appeals) 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not accepted any loans from any financial 
institution or banks or issued debentures; 

(ix) The Company doesn't raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments). 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of the material fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported by 
the Company during the year, nor have we been informed any such case by the 
Company; 

(xi) Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of sec 197 read with schedule V to the companies 
Act. 

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company hence nothing to be disclosed for any provisions 
applicable on Nidhi Company; 

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been discl.osed in the 
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standard; 

(xiv) The company hasn't made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

(xv) The company hasn't entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IAofthe Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. 

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 103256W 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 30/08/2016 



"ANNEXURE·B" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH II OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 ("THE ACT") OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 'Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internat 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance rega · prevention or timely detection of .unauthorized 
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acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo-rting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial contFolo-ver financial repo-rting may beco-me inadequate because of changes in co-nd-itio-ns, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on IFS Report. 

FORM. K. GOHEL &ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 1~0~~~ 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 30/08/2016 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2016 
Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Shareholders' Funds 

Share capital 
Reserves and surplus 

Non-current liabilities 
Other Long-term Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Short-term borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other current liabilities 
Short term provisions 

II. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Fixed assets : 
Tangible assets 

Current assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans and Advances 

The accom an ·n notes 1 to 24 are an inte raJ 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ~=~ ..... 
FIRM REG. N0.:103256W 

? 
MUKESH K GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 

3 0 A JG ZD16 

Total 

Total 

Note 
No. 

3 
4 

5 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 

11 
12 
13 

art of the financial statements. 

As At 

31st March 2016 
t 

500,000 
(87,113,372} 

(86,613,372) 

1,266,555 
1,266,555 

60,250,394 
26,763,691 

4,038,289 
15,317 

91,067,691 
5,720,874 

61979 
61,979 

4,193,359 
345,546 

1,119,990 
5,658,895 
5,720,874 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

t 

1,266,555 
1,266,555 

58,268,852 
27,811,204 
12,210,752 

98,290,808 
5 286103 

77,223 
77,223 

4,193,359 
816,128 
199,393 

5,208,880 
5 286103 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

NANCY PEREIRA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00081958 

~~ ~ 
VIKRA ~IN 

DIR CTOR 
DIN: 01912696 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the ear ended 31st March 2016 
Particulars 

I. INCOME 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total 
II. EXPENSES 

Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Other expenses 

Total 
Profit I (Loss) before tax 

Tax expense : 
Current tax 
Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
Deferred tax (charge) I credit 

Profit I (Loss) after tax but before adjustments 
Prior period adjustments (Net) 

Profit for the year 
Earning per equity share of nominal value off 101- each 

Basic and diluted 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. N0.:103256W 

MUKESH K GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Mumbai 
Date: 

30 AUG~ 
. ' 

Note 
No. 

14 

15 
16 
17 

21 

19 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March 2016 31st March, 2015 

f f 

8,435,115 645,980 
8,435,115 645,980 

530,412 7,918,634 
15,244 24,403 

216,254 144,558 
761,910 8,087,595 

7,673,205 (7,441,615) 

(15,317) 
(19,775) 

7,657,888 

7,657,888 

153.16 (149.36) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

NANCY PEREIRA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00081958 

~~~~ 
VI~RAN~AIN 

DIRECTOR 
DIN: 01912696 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '1': CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Devkrupa Build Tech Public Limited is a Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The 
company is engaged in real estate business of construction and development of Residential and Commercial Premises and Other Real 
Estate Projects including Consultancy and sole selling of real estate. 

NOTE '2': SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared and presented complying the section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013 in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Guidance Notes and other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013. 

II. Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in India requires the 
management to make estimates and assumptions, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known 1 materialized. 

III. Revenue recognition 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity 

Revenue from sale of 'finished properties 1 buildings I rights' is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of such properties I building I rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyerf(s), which generally 
coincides with the firming of the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to 
perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. 

B Interest: 
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

C Others: 
Other Revenues 1 Incomes and Costs I Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

IV. Tangible assets and depreciation I amortisation 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation I amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the 
month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

V. Borrowing costs 

Interests and other borrowing costs (including ancillary borrowing costs) attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of 
the cost of construction 1 development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Ancillary borrowing costs 
(including front-end fees, processing fees etc. due to which rate of borrowing gets reduced) are amortised over the period of the 
related borrowing, but not exceeding a period of three years. Other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss statement. 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTE '2' (Contd.) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2016 

VI. Segment reporting 

The company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Accounting Standard - 17 'Segment Reporting' is 
considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is also operating within the same geographical segment. 
Hence, disclosures under AS-17 are not applicable. 

VII. Impairment of assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment based on 
internaljexternal factors, i.e. when the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognised in 
prior accounting periods is reversed or reduced if there has been a favourable change in the estimate of the recoverable amount. 

VIII. Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made on the basis of the 
assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is 
calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax 
assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if 
there is a virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of other timing 
differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. At each Balance Sheet date, the 
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization. 

Excess 1 short provision for taxation are recognized on completion of necessary taxation proceedings (Viz. revised returns, 
assessments etc.) 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax U/s llS)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of 
normal income tax is recognised as an asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such 
asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

IX. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is present obligation as a result 
of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are 
disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31"1 March, 2016 

As At As At 
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 
NOTE'3' 
SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each 500,000 500,000 

Total 5001000 500,000 

ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each 500,000 500,000 

Total 500,000 5001000 
Footnotes: 
3.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

and at the end of the year (Nos) (Nos) 
Number of Shares at the Beginning 50,000 50,000 
Add/(Less): 
Issue during the year - . 

Buyback during the year - -
Atthe end of the year (Nos) Total 50,000 50,000 

3.2 Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 
subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding com pan {Nos) (Nos) 

Hubtown Limited with its benefeciary owners 25,500 50,000 
Mr. Surendra Sanas 24,500 -

Total 50,000 50,000 

3.3 Equity Shareholders holding more than 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

five percent of holdings Nos %of Holdings Nos % of Holdings 
Hub town Limited with its benefeciary owners 25,500 51% 50,000 100% 
Mr. Surendra Sanas 24,500 49% 

Total 50,000 51% 50,000 100% 

3.4 Terms frights attached to Equity Shares: 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of t 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to 
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders. 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '4' 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
Debenture Redemption Reserve 

Balance as per last financial statements 
Add I (Less) : 
Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 
Trasferred to General Reserve 

General Reserves 
Balance as per last financial statements 
Add I (Less) : 
Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 
Trasferred to Profit and Loss Account 

Surplus in statement of profit and loss 
Balance as per last financial statements 
Profit for the year 
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

NOTE'S' 
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Retention money payable 

NOTE'6' 
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

Unsecured Loans 
- from Companies (Refer footnote i) 
- from related party (Refer note 18) and (footnote ii) 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As At 

31st March, 2016 
t 

52,500,000 

52,500,000 

(147,271,260) 
7,657,888 

(139,613,372) 
(87,113,372) 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

t 

1,266,555 
1,266,555 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

t 

591,075 
59,659,319 

60,250,394 

i. The above loan from other Companies is taken at an interest rate of C.Y NIL and (P.Y. 15% p.a.) 
ii. Loan from related parties are interest free and are repayable on demand. 

-

As At 

31st March, 2015 
t 

52,500,000 

52,500,000 

(139,803,299) 
(7,467,961) 

(147,271,260) 
(94,771,260) 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

t 

1,266,555 
1,266,555 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

t 

58,268,852 
58,268,852 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st ,March 2016 

NOTE'7' 
TRADE PAY ABLES 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises payable (Refer footnote) 
Trade Payables 

Footnotes: 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

26,763,691 
Total 26,763,691 =========:f:==== 

7.1 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006: 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

27,811,204 
27,811,204 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are 
registered under MSMED Act. and the same has been relied upon bv the auditors. 

NOTE'S ' 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 
Security Deposit from Customer 
Advance from Customer 
Other payables: 

- Statutory dues 
- Other miscellaneous 

NOTE '9' 
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 

Other Provisions 
Provision for income tax 

As At As At 
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 

7,126,771 
113,230 113,230 
335,422 335,42'2 

2,055,730 3,196,434 
1,533,907 1,438,895 

Total 4,038!289 12,210!752 

As At As At 
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 

15,317 

Total=========1=5s3=1=7= ============= 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016 

NOTE '10' 
FIXED ASSETS (Amount in f) 

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK 

PARTICULARS As at Additions I Deductions I As at Up to Provided Deductions I Up to As at As at 

31st March, Adjustments Adjustments 31st March, 31st March, during the Adjustments 31st Mar, 31st Mar, 31st Mar, 

2015 during the year 2015 2015 year 2016 2016 2016 

Tangible Assets 
Air Conditioner 32,309 - - 32,309 32,309 - - 32,309 - -
Pump 186,810 - - 186,810 109,587 15,244 - 124,831 61,979 77,223 

Office equipment 7,200 - - 7,200 7,200 - - 7,200 - -

GRAND TOTAL 226,319 - - 226,319 149,096 15,244 - 164,340 61,979 77,223 

Previous Year 226,319 - - 226,319 124,694 24,402 - 149,096 77,223 101,625 

/ ___ .., 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MHZ006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016 

NOTE'11' 
TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade receivables (Unsecured considered good) 
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
Other receivables 

NOTE'12' 
CASH AND CASH EQUEVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 
- On current accounts 

NOTE '13' 
LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Security Deposits 
Loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good) 

-to related parties 
Advance Income Tax [Net of Provision~ 5,75,758; (P.Y. ~ 5,75,758)1 
Service tax Cenvat 

NOTE'14' 
OTHER INCOME 

Interest: 
-On Loans 

Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 
Miscellaneous income 

NOTE '15' 
FINANCE COSTS 

Interst on Loans 
Interest on delayed payments of taxes and statutory dues 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

2,896,514 
1,296,845 

4,193,359 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

195 

345,351 
345,546 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

190,300 

925,960 
3,730 

1,119,990 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

8,435,115 

8,435,115 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

530,412 
530,412 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

2,896,514 
1296,845 

4,193,359 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

195 

815,933 
816,128 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

190,300 

9,093 

199,393 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

645,980 
645,980 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

7,918,634 

7,918,634 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE'16' 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 
Total 

NOTE '17' 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Repairs and Maintenance 
Professional Fees 
Auditors Remuneration (Refer footnote) 
Other expenses 

Total 

Footnote: 
Auditor's Remuneration (included in other expenses) 

Audit fees 
Limited Review Fees 
Tax Audit Fees 
Service Tax on above 

Total 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 

15,244 24,403 
15,244 24,403 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 

62,845 49,461 
17,175 33,708 

136,234 61,389 
216,254 144,558 

15,000 15,000 
15,000 

2,175 3,708 
17,175 33,708 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '18' 
RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 
Related Party Transactions as per Accounting Statdard 18 (AS-18). 

A. Holding Company 
1 Hubtown Limited 

B. Fellow Subsidiaries 
1 ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 
2 Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
3 Adhivitiya Properties Limited (Upto August 31, 2014) 
4 Arnav Grub Limited (Upto February 28, 2015) 
5 Citygold Education Research Limited 
6 Citygold Farming Private Limited 
7 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
8 Gujarat Akruti- TCG Biotech Limited 
9 Halitious Developer Limited 

10 Headland Farming Private Limited 
11 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
12 Heeler Hospitality Private Limited (Upto 31st March 2015) 
13 Sheshan Housing & Area Development Engineers Limited 
14 India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 
15 )oynest Premises Private Limited 
16 Merrygold Buildcon Private Limited (Upto 31st March 2015) 
17 Heet Builders Private Limited 
18 Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 
19 Urvi Build Tech Limited 
20 Varna Housing Limited 
21 Vega Developers Private Limited 
22 Vishal Nirman (India) Limited (Upto 31st March 2015) 
23 Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 
24 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 
25 Citywood Builders Private Limited (From November 29, 2014) 

c. Related Party Transaction for the year ended March 31 Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary 
Nature of Transactions ~ ~ 

Loans received I recovered I Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 300,000 

(52,000,000) 
Urvi Build Tech Limited 918,000 

(2,093,355) 
Loans repaid I given I Adjusted 

Hubtown Limited -
-

Urvi Build Tech Limited 172,467 
(50,906) 

Interest Income 
Urvi Build Tech Limited -

-
Interest Expense 

Urvi Build Tech Limited 0 
(191,630) 

Loan Payable 
Hubtown Limited 56,664,891 

(56,364,891) 
Urvi Build Tech Limited 2,994,428 

(1, 782,233) 
Loan Receivable 

Urvi Build Tech Limited -
-

Footnotes: 
i. Figures in bracket pertains to previous year. 
ii. Related parties are identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 

NOTE '19' 

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) 
Profiti(Loss) after tax(~) 
Weighted aveage number of equity shares outstanding 
at the end of the year (Nos) 
Earning per equity share (Nominal Value of share of no 1- each) 

Basic and Diluted 

NOTE '20' 
CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

--------
31st March, 2016 

~ 

7,657,888 

50,000 

153.16 

Particular As At 

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of:­
lncome tax matters under appeals for : 

31st March, 2016 

Income Tax matters under Appeal with CIT for the Financial Year 2011-201 1,99,06,143 

Note: 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

(7,467,960) 

50,000 

(149.36) 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

20,823,010.00 

Interest I Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The company has taken the 
necessary steps to protect its position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional 
I legal advice, are not sustainable. 

NOTE '21' 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

Debit related to earlier years: 
Repairs and Maintainance Expenses 
Other Expenses 

NOTE '22' 

31st March, 2016 
~ 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

(6,571) 

(6,571) 

The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's 
management is, however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company is in the process of 
procuring new business, the proceeds of which when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company 
to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

NOTE '23' 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and 
Advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 

NOTE '24' 

Previous year figures have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year 

As per attached report of even date 

r«fr";v..P 
MUKESH K GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 

U_G~ 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

NANCY PEREIRA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN : 00081958 

~~:.: K~~~OR 
DIN: 01912696 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 
CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

Cash Flow Statement for the ear ended 31st March, 2016 

Particulars 

Cash flows arjsine from ooeratine actiyjtjes 

Net profit before taxation and prior period items as per statement of profit and loss 
Add I (Less): 
Depreciation and amortisation 

Interest and Finance Cost 

Prior period adjustments 

Provisions no longer required 

Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less): 

(Increase) I Decrease in trade receivables 

(Increase) I Decrease in other receivables 

Increase I (Decrease) in other Current liabilities 

Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

Cash flows arisine from jnyestine activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Interest income received 

Net cash flow from investing activities 

Cash flows arisine from financine activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Repayment of Long-term borrowings 

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 
Finance costs paid 

Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + II + Ill ) 

Add: Balance at the beginning ofthe year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12) 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with banks 

- On Current accounts 

Footnote: 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2016 

7,673,205 

15,244 

530,412 

545,656 

8,218,861 

(920,597) 

(1,030,375) 

(1,047,513) 

(15,317) 

(3,013,802) 

5,205,059 

1,981,541 
(7,657,183) 

(5,675,642) 

(470,583) 

816,128 

345,545 

195 

345 350 
345,545 

Year Ended 

31st March, 
2015 

~ 

(7,441,615) 

24,403 

7,918.634 

(6,571) 

(19,775) 

7 916 691 

475,076 

63,019 

910,556 

(2,135,212) 

(558,437) 

7,403,960 

1,314,919 

69,922 

746,207 

816129 

195 

815,933 

816128 

ed reclassified wherever necessar to make them com arable with current 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL&ASSOCIATES 

FIRM REG. N0.:103256W 

MUL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Mumbai ~ 0 
Date: -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

NANCY PEREIRA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00081958 

~l.A~"AJ­
~~JAIN 

DIRECTOR 
DIN : 01912696 



IN THE BOOKS OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

CIN: U74140MH2006PLC166596 

Inter Group Transactions During April To March 2016 And The Balances As On 31st March, 2016 

NAME OF THE GROUP Relation As on 
COMPANIES EXPENSES ASSETS LIABILITIES 
SCHEDULE VI GROUPING Fin Costs Fin Costs L&A- Current ur. Liabilitie ST-Borrowin~ Other Cur. Liab Equities & Liab. 

31st March, lnterst on Interest on Loan given to Trade Loan from Interes Ace ESC/ PSC/ Capital in 
2016 Loans Others related Payable Related and Due )Vs&Firms 

_Parties Parties 
Hubtown Limited Parent - 56,664,891 500,000 

Sub£i!liari~:£ 
Urvi 8uildtech Limited Fellow Subsid iary 0 2,994,428 

Akruti jay Develojlers 26,191,710 

TOTAL - 26,191,710 59,659,319 500,000 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS - ? FIRM REG. N0.:103256W -:?-<;;,\.. & As.s- -~~ 
0 00 

0 / 
~ MUMBAI ~ 

I M . No . m I 
MUKESH K GOHEL ~ 038823 (/) 

NANCY PEREIRA 
* • -PROPRIETOR q * 

a 
DIRECTOR 

Membership No. 038823 
~ ~'b~ 

DIN : 00081958 ~erea ACCOu~ 
(Po , 

~~:· 
c · 

I * t;·· 

3 0 AUG LUI~ 
0 ,,,';?· 

Mumbai O..t.-, H'J~ ...: DIRECTOR 

Date: - DIN: 01912696 



DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO 
The Members of Divinity Projects Private Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Divinity Projects Private Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have 
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India .. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dtte 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness counting estimates 
made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall res_¢nt~ f the financial 
statements. //' -
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the provisions of 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order; 

II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2016 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2016 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B". 



(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any as at March 31, 2016 
on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

DINESH DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 9464 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2016 



"ANNEXURE A" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF DIVINITY PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) The Company did not have any Fixed Assets during the year, Therefore, the provisions of Clause 
3(i) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ii) The Company did not have any Inventories during the year; Therefore, the provisions of Clause 
3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees 
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of 
Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub­
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vii) a) According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in depositing, 
wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Investor Education and 
Protection Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Vat, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other 
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There were no amounts outstanding as at 
the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
became payable. 

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales tax 
including value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute; 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank and 
debenture holders as at balance sheet date; 



(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans 
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained; 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management; 

(xi) The Company has not paid I provided managerial Remuneration hence, the prov1s1ons of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard 18- Related Party Disclosers 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 
of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
Management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

FOR DALAL DOSHI &ASSOCIATES 

~---~ 

DINESH DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No.: 9464 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :18th May, 2016 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF DIVINITY PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Divinity Projects Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the period ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company constdering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, mcluding the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated m the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For DALAL DOSHI &ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.:121773W 

• ,4.._ __ 

DINESH DOSHI 
PARTNER 
Membership No.: 9464 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th May, 2016 

~--



Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Balance Sheet As at 31" March 2016 
Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 

Reserves and surplus 

Non-Current liabilities : 

Long-term Borrowings 

Current Liabilities : 

Short term borrowings 

Trade Payables 

Other current liabilities 

Short term provisions 

II. ASSETS 

Non-current Assets 

Non-current investments 

Long term loans and advances 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 

Short-term loans and advances 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI &ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 121773W 

Chartered Accountants -

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

~oSHI &4 .., 
A I ' "l-'- "& r.>------ ~ q., 

( 

c::; FIR/I 'fEG~' 1, ;y 
Jt I f. lf0 '-\ 

DINESH DOSHI o 12177JW . ~ 

Partner ~ MUMBA! "~ 
'"(, ~ 

Membership No: 9464 ~ . ~ .. :~" 
•> 4cco\.\<' 
·-._ -_.., 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 18th May, 2016 

Note No. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1 to 2 

3 to 21 

As At 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

500,000 

48 230 665 

48,730,665 

511,500,000 

2,167,532 

123,206 

1,718,169 
. 

4,008,907 

564,239,572 

33,125 
514689 798 

514,722,923 

250,026 

49 266 623 
49,516,649 

564,239,572 

As At 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

500,000 

48,549,916 

49,049,916 

. 

1,480,532 
. 

90,951 

12,595 

1,584,078 

50,633 994 

33,125 
. 

33,125 

250,869 

50,350,000 

50,600,869 

50,633,994 

JAINAM NARESH SHAH 

Director 

DIN: 07129100 

G~ 
RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 
DIN: 03141200 
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Dlvlnlti Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the ear ended 31"' March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. INCOMES 

Income from business operations 
Share of profit I (loss) from partnership firms (Net) 
Other Income 

II. EXPENSES 

Finance Cost 

Other Expenses 

Loss before tax 

Tax expense : 

Current tax 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Excess I (Short) Provision of Income Tax for 
earlier periods 

Deferred tax 

Loss for the year 

Earning per equity share (Nominal Value of share of~ 
101- each) 

Basic and diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI &ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

.A' 
DINESH DOSHI 

Partner 

Membership No: 9464 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 18th May, 2016 

Note 

No. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 to 2 

3 to 21 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

~ 

(692) 

(692) 

306,144 

69,325 

375,469 

(376,161) 

56,910 

(6.39) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

585,000 

585.000 

68 

1,029,653 

1,029,721 

(444,721) 

(70,505) 

(10.30) 

)AINAM NARESH SHAH 

Director 

DIN: 07129100 

RA)EEVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 

DIN: 03141200 



Dlvlnlt! Projects Private Umlted 
CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31" March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. Cash flows adslnll from operat1n11 activities 

Net Loss before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less): 
Sundry Credit balance written back 
Advance and other debit balance written off 
Share of profit I (loss) from partnership firms (Net) 
Finance cost 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 

Cha01res in wprkinll capital· 

Add/ Less: 

Increase/ (Decrease) In Trade Payables 
Increase I (Decrease) In Other Payables 

Increase/ (Decrease) In Short Term Provisions 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Long-term Loans and Advances 

(Increase)/ Decrease In Short Term Loans and Advances 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid 

Net Cash Dow in the course of Operating Activities 

II. Cash Opws adslnll from lpyestiQII activities 

Inflow/ (Outflow) on account of: 

Share of profit I (loss) from partnership firms (Net) 

(Increase) I Decrease In Long Term Investment 
Net Cash Dow In the course oflnvesting Activities 

Ill. Cash Opws adslnll frpm Flpapc!QII activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Increase In advances 

Increase In borrowings 

Interest on delay payment of taxes 
Net Cash Dow In the course of Financing Activities 

Net Increase In cash and cash Equivalents (I+ II+ Ill) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Cash and Cash EQulyalepts (Refer Npte 12) 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 

In current account 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end oftbe year 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCJA TES 
Firm Registration No. 121773W 

Chartered Accountants 

c~'"'' &Ass. 
"~ Oc "'(' <~ 

( t FIRI~ REGN. NO. ~) DJNESH DOSHI 

Partner 
Membership No: 9464 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 18th May, 2016 

* 121773W * 
'J MUMBAI $ 

""'I: ~.., 
f!r <' ,. 
~d Acc.C>'-> 
-~ ' • ... ..-· 

31st March, 2016 
Amount Amount 

(~) (~) 

(376,161) 

-
-
692 

692 

(375,469) 

123,206 

1,627,218 

(514,689,798) 

1127 692 
(511,811,682) 

(512,187,151) 

-
(512,187,151) 

(692) 

(692) 

(692) 

512,187,000 

512,187,000 

512,187,000 

(843) 
250,869 

250 026 

24,330 

225,696 

250,026 

31st March, 2015 
Amount Amount 

(~) (~) 

(444,721) 

(585,000) 
925,750 

-
68 

340818 

(103,903) 

-
25,220 
12,595 

-
57910 

95,725 
(8,178) 

_170 505) 
(70,505) 

(78,683) 

-
(10 000) 

(10,000) 

(10,000) 

-
-

_161!1 
(68) 

(68) 

(88,751) 
339,620 

250869 

27,990 

222,879 
250,869 

JAINAM NARESH SHAH 
Director 

DIN: 07129100 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
Director 

DIN: 03141200 



Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

1 Corporate Information 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged to acquire by purchase, lease, exchange, hire, or otherwise land 
and property of any tenure or any interest in the same and to erect and construct houses, building or work of 
every description on any land of the company or upon any other lands of property and to pull down, rebuild, 
enlarge, alter and improve existing, houses, building or work thereon to convert and appropriate any such land 
into and for roads, streets, squares, garden, and any other conveniences and generally to deal with and improve 
the property of the company or any other property, and to act as earth movers, contractors, developers of land, 
government contractor, construction of road, bridges, earth work, sewers, tanks drains, culvert, channels, sewage, 
or other works. 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

I. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been prepared and presented complying the section 134(5) of Companies 
Act, 2013 in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in accordance with 
the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Guidance Notes and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013. 

All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the 
operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance as set out in the Schedule III, to the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Operating Cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the specific project/ 
contract/ Service and extends up to the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally 
applicable to the respective project 

II. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles 
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known I materialized 

111. Revenue Recognition 
a. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the 

company and the revenue can be reliabaly measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the 
ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyer's commitment to make the complete payment 

b. Share of profit 1 loss from partnership firm I associations of person (AOP) is accounted in respect of the 
financial year of the firm 1 AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited I management 
reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other operating activity. 

IV. Investments 
Investments are classified into current and Non-Current/ Long Term Investments. Current investments are 
stated at lower of cost and fair value. Long term investments are stated at cost A provision for diminution 
is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value oflong term investments. 



Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

V. Borrowing Costs 
Interests and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of 
construction I development of such assets. The borrowing costs incurred during the period in which 
activities, necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use or sale, are in progress, are allocated as 
aforesaid. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is 
interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Front-end fees, 
processing fees and other 'one time' charges are amortised over the period of the related borrowing, but 
not exceeding a period of three years. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

VI. Segment Reporting 
The company is engaged in the business of "Real Estate Development", which as per Accounting Standards 
AS-17-'Segment Reporting' is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is also 
operating within the same geographical segment 

VII. Taxations 
Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit Provision for current tax is 
made on the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The 
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account 
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a 
virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of 
other timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. 
At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure 
realization. 
Excess I short provision for taxation are recognised on completion of necessary taxation proceedings (viz. 
revised returns, assessments, etc.) 
In case, the Company is liable to pay income tax under Section 115JB of Income Tax, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the 
amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is recongnised as on asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only 
if there is convincing evidence for realisation of such asset during the specified period. MAT Credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

VIII. Impairment of Assets 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. If there is any indication of 
impairment based on internal/external factors, i.e. when the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an 
asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed or 
reduced if there has been a favourable change in the estimate of the recoverable amount 

IX. Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets 
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is 
present obligation as a result of past events and its probable there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statement Contingent assets are 
neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements. 

G 



Dlvlnld ProJects Private Limited 

CJN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'3' 

SHARE CAPITAL 

AUTHORISED 

50,000(P.Y.50,000) Equity Shares of'{' 10/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAJD UP 

50,000 (P.Y.50,000) Equity Shares of'{' 10/- each fully paid up 

Total 

3.1 Recondlladon of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end ofthe 
year 

Number of Shares at the Beginning 

Add/(l..ess): 

Issue during the year 

Buyback during the year 

Conversion during the year 

At the end of the repordngthe year (Nos) Total 

3.2 Equity Shares held by Its holding company or Its ultimate holding company, 
subsidiaries or assodates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company. 

Holding Company 

Hubtown Limited with beneficiary owners 

3.3 Equity Shareholders holding more than five percent of 
holdings 

Total 

31st March, 2016 

Nos %of Holdings 

As at 

31'1 March, 2016 
~ 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

31st March, 2016 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

31st March, 2016 
(Nos) 

50,000 
50,000 

As at 

31" March, 2015 
~ 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

31st March, 2015 
(Nos) 

50,000 

50,000 

31st March, 2015 
(Nos) 

50,000 
50,000 

31st March, 2015 

Nos % of Holdings 

Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners ----~5~0,~0~00~ ________ 1_0_0~% --------~5~0,~0~00~----------~10~0~%~ 
Total ====~5~0~,0~0~0======~~1~0~0~~0 ========~5~0~,0~0~0===-------~1~0~0%~ 

3.4 Tenns 1 Right attached to Ordinary Equity Shares: 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of '{' 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share Is entitled to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of shareholders In the 
ensuing annual general meeting. 

NOTE'4' 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

General Reserve 

Balance as per Last Financial Statements 

Add : Transfer from Profit/Loss account 

Closing balance 

Surplus In Profit and Loss Statement 

Balance as per Last Profit and Loss Statement 

Add: Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
~ 

121,000 

121,000 

48,428,916 

(319,251) 

48,109,665 

48.230,665 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

121,000 

121,000 

48,944.142 

[515.226) 
48,428,916 

48,549,916 



Dlvtnltl Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH199SPTC087713 

Notes to the financial st"dtements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'S' 

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Secured Loans 

-Loan from Financial Institution 

Footnote: 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
t 

511,500,000 

511,500,000 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t 

1. The Company has entered In to tripartite agreement with Twenty Five South Realty Limited and lndlabulls Housing Finance Limited, In accordance with the 
terms of the agreement Interest on long term borrowings shall be paid by Twenty Five South Realty Limited tlll the date of Posesslon. 

ll. Repayment Terms 

a. Long term borrowings amounting tot 24 crore Is paid to be repaid In 8 equal6 monthly Installments starting from the month of july, 2017. 

b. Long term borrowings amounting tot 31 crore Is paid to be repaid In 8 equal 6 monthly Installments starting from the month of july, 2017. 

Ill. The above loan are secured against: 

a. For I pan amountlne to I' 24 crore· 

Mortgage and charge over unit no. 2103 and 3801 having aggregate carpet area of S,202 sq.ft. to be constructed at Prabhadevl, Dadar. 

b. For I pap amoypt!ne to I' 31 crpre· 

Mortgage and charge over unit no. 4003 having aggregate carpet area of9,840 sq.ft. to be constructed at Prabhadevl, Dadar. 

NOTE'6' 

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Unsecured Loans 

· from related pa~ (Refer Note 18) 

NOTE'7' 

TRADE PAY ABLES 
Trade payable (Refer foot note) 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
~ 

2,167,532 

2,167,532 

As at 

31st March, 2016 

~ 

123.206 
123 206 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t 

1,480,532 

1,480,532 

As at 

31st March, 2015 

t 

As certified by the company and relied upon by the auditors, none of the creditors of the Company are registered under Micro, Small and Medium 
enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008. 

NOTE'S' 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Other payables: 
- Statutory Dues 
-Others Miscellaneous 

NOTE'9' 

PROVISIONS 

Total 

Total 

f) G 

As at 

31st March, 2016 
~ 

1.687,439 
30,730 

1,718169 

As at 

31st March, 2016 

~ 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t 

90,951 
90951 

As at 

31st March, 2015 
t 

12,595 

12 595 



Dlvlnltl Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ma.-ch, 2016 

NOTE '11' 
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Capital Advances (Refer note 19 b) 
Ancillary cost of acquiring capital asset 

NOTE'12' 
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 
- On Current accounts 

NOTE'13' 
LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Advances recoverable In cash or kind 
Unsecured, considered good 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision t Nil, P.Y. t Nil) 

NOTE'14' 
OTHER INCOME 

Sundry Credit balances written back 

NOTE'15' 
FINANCE COST 

Interest on delayed payment of taxes 

NOTE'16' 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Legal & Professional fees 
Advance and other debit balance written off 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 

Foonote: 
Auditor's Remuneration Included In other expenses: 

Statutory Audit Fees 
Other certification fees 
Service tax on above 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

501,060,598 
13,629,200 

514 689 798 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

24,330 

225 696 
250,026 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

49,222,308 
44,315 

49,266,623 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

306,144 
306,144 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

t 

19,202 

so 123 
69,325 

31st March, 2016 
t 

17,500 

2,538 
20,038 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

27,990 

222.879 
250,869 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

50,350,000 

50,350,000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

585,000 
585000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

68 
68 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

t 

49,440 
925,750 

54,463 
1,029,653 

31st March, 2015 
t 

17,500 
15,000 
4017 

36517 



Dlvlnltl Projects Prlvate Limited 
CJN: U70100MH199SPTC087713 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
As at 

31st March, 2016 
NOTE'17' 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Loss for the year ~ 
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos) 
Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share of'( 10/- each) 

Basic and diluted 

NOTE'18' 
Related Party Disclosures 

A. Name of related parties and description of relations 
Holding Company : Hubtown Limited 
Fellow Subsidiary Company : ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 

Ackruti Safeguard systems Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Citywood Builders Private Limited 
Devkrupa Build Tech Limited 
Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech Limited 
Halitious Developer Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 
joynest Premises Private Limited 

(319,251) 
50,000 

(6.39) 

Sheshan Housing And Area Development Engineers Limited (Up to Aprill, 2015) 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 

Firm in which Company is a 
Partner 

Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 
Urvi Build Tech Limited 
Varna Housing Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 

: Mls Rising Glory Developers 

B. Transactions with related parties 
Particulars Realted Party 

Loans received I recovered I Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Share ofloss from Partnership Firm 
Rising Glory Developers Firm in which Company is a Partner 

Advance towards property 
Twenty Five South Realty Pvt. Fellow subsidiary 
Ltd. 

On behalf payments made (Including reimbursement of expenses} 
Twenty Five South Realty Pvt. Fellow subsidiary 
Ltd. 

Balance Payable as on 31st March, 2016 

Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Rising Glory Developers Firm in which Company is a Partner 

Balance Receivable as on 31st March, 2016 

Twenty Five South Realty Pvt. Fellow subsidiary 
Ltd. 

Amount m 

6,85,000 
(-) 

692 
(-) 

50,10,60,598 
(-) 

16,87,671 
(-) 

21,65,532 
(14,80,532) 

10,692 
(10,000) 

50,27,48,269 
(-) 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(515,226) 
50,000 

(10.30) 



Dlvlnltl Projects Private Umlted 
CIN: U70100MH199SPTC087713 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'19' 

a . Contingent UabiUty 
The Company does not have any contingent liability as on balance sheet date, as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. 

b. capital Commitment 

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for (net of capital advances) 

NOTE'20' 

As at As at 

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

1,000,079,402 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Non Current Assets, Non current liabilities and Current 
Liabilities continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 

NOT£'21' 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No. 121773W 
Chartered Accountants 

' A~------

DINESH DOSHI 
Partner 
Membership No: 9464 

Place Mumbal 
Date : 18th May, 2016 

JAINAM NARESH SHAH 
Director 

DIN: 07129100 

RAjEEVAN PARAMBAN 
Director 

DIN: 03141200 



Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

CIN: U70100MH1995PTC087713 

Inter company transactions as on 31 March, 2016 (For the purpose of Consolidation) 

NAME OF THE GROUP 
COMPANIES LIABILITIES ASSET 

SCHEDULE Vl GROUPING Short Term Borrowings Other Current Assets 

Line item Unsecured Loans Advances recoverable in cash or kind 

Hub town 

Twenty five south 

SCHEDULE VI GROUPING Other current liabilities 

Others Miscellaneous 

Firm in which company js a Partner 

Rising Glory Developers 

TOTAL 

FOR DALAL DOSHI & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 121773W 

-tl \ ( 
~---

DINESH DOSHI 

Partner 

Membership No: 9464 

Mumbai 

Date: 18th May, 2016 

10,692 

2,176,224 

- 1,687,671 

1,687,671 

ASSET 

Non - current Loans & Advances 

Advances towards Property 

501,060,598 

Investment 

Capital Investment in Partnership 
Firm 

10,000 

501,070,598 

For and on behalf of the board 

JAINAM NARESH SHAH 

Director 

DIN: 07129100 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 

DIN: 03141200 













































SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HALITIOUS DEVELOPER LIMITED 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HALITIOUS DEVELOPER LIMITED 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

1) Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the act") with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and desig:1, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

2) Auditor's Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and 
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order under 
Section 143(11) of the Act. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, inducting the assessment of the risks of material 

. ..--::=fD..l·:sstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
c;,'c\~&4s,r. 
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

3) Opinion: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

4) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

I) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 ('the Order') issued by 
the Central government in terms of Section 143(11) ofthe Act, we give in 'Annexure A' 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

II) As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that: 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as 
on 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in 'Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 



g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company does not have any material pending litigation which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 135703W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

~ 
SANKETSHAH 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date 3 0 AUG 2016 
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ANNEXURE 'A' REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH- I OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3tst MARCH, 2016 OF HALITIOUS 
DEVELOPER LIMITED 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) The company does not have any Fixed Assets during the financial year and as at the 
balance sheet date; 

(ii) The Company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance sheet 
date; 

(iii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or securities to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent 
notified. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the said Order are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and 
hence the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in depositing, 
wherever applicable, undisputed statutory dues including Investor Education and 
Protection Fund, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities. However, there were Outstanding interest amounts of 
~47,39,413/- on Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT) thereon and interest 
under on delayed payment of taxes (under section 2348 and 234C of Income Tax) 
amounting to ~6,81,130/-. There were no dues during the year towards Employees 
State Insurance and Excise Duty; 

(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess; 

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; 



(viii) In our opm10n and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and 
financial institution. There are no dues to any financial institutions. 

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under dause 3(ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the management; 

(xi) The Company not paid any Managerial Remuneration. Accordingly, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of dause 3 (xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the 
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disdosed in the 
financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS-18) "Related Party". 
Disclosers specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit 
Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of 
Clause 3 (xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of dause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

FOR SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 135703W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

~ 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 
Place: Mumbai 

Date : 3 0 AUG 2016 



ANNEXURE 'B' REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH - ll(f) OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL 
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016 OF HALITIOUS 
DEVELOPER LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HALITIOUS 
DEVELOPERS LIMITED ('the Company') as of March 31,2016 in conjunction with our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended and as on that date. 

1) Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the Guidance Note'). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

2) Auditors' Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act and Guidance Note, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reportin& assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



3) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financials Reporting: 
A company's internal financial control over financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

4) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

5) Opinion: 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 201, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

FOR SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 135703W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

k 
SANKETSHAH 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place : Mumbai 

Dat~ 0 AUG 2016 
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HaJitious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2016 

Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 
Reserves and surplus 

Current liabilities : 
Short term borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other current liabilities 

II. ASSETS 

Non Current Assets 
Non Current Investments 

Current Assets 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalent 
Short-term loans and advances 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associate.s 
Firm Registration No: 135703W 
Chartered Accountants 

s.W 

Mumbai 
Date· 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Note No. 

3 
4 

5 
6 
7 

8 

9 
10 
11 

1to2 
3 to 20 

As At 

31st March, 2016 
~ 

1,000,000 
29,650 834 

30,650,834 

10,300,000 
556,696 

5,440,410 
16,297,106 
46,947940 

10,000 

46,719,631 
104,876 
113,433 

46,947,940 
46,947,940 

As At 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

1,000,000 
29726,911 

30,726,911 

10,300,000 
542,940 

5,445,543 
16,288,483 
47 015,394 

10,000 

46,719,631 
172,330 
113,433 

47,015,394 

47 015 394 

For and on behalf of the board 

V4Jt/l. 
)t KUSHAL SHAH 

~ULJKJ. SHAH 
Director 

DIN:02892175 



Halitious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the ear ended 31st March, 2016 
Particulars 

I. INCOMES 

Revenue from business operations 
Other Income 

II. EXPENSES 

Other Expenses 
Finance Cost 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 
Profit I (Loss) for the period from continuing operations 

Prior period adjustments (Net) 
Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Earning per equity share (Face Value of flO I· each) 
Basic and Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Firm Registration No: 135703W 
Chartered Accountants 

SA~ 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 152369 

Note 
No. 

12 

13 
14 

17 

15 

1 to 2 
3 to 20 

Year ended 

31st March 2016 

I 

(692) 

692 

75,183 
203 

75,386 
(76,078) 

(0.76) 

Year ended 

31st March 2015 

I 

36,809 

36,809 

140,695 
1,357,380 

(2.09) 

For and on behalf of the board 

.z 
MAULIKJ. SHAH 

Director 
DIN: 02892175 



Halltious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3111 March, 2016 

I. Cash flows arjsine from operattne act!yitles 
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit or Loss 
Add I (Less): 
Interest and Finance Charges 
Prior Period Adjustments (Net) 

Qperadag Pra.fit I a.oss.J Before Working Capital Changes 
Add I (Less): 

(Increase) 1 Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Current 
Liability 
Direct Taxes (Paid) I Income Tax Refunds 

Net Cash flow in the course of Operating Activities 
lr 
~£ash flows adsine from lpyestine activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Proceed from Long Term Investment 
Net Cash flow in the course oflnvesting Activities 

Ill. Cash flows arisioe from Financine activJtles 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Short term borrowings 
Interest and Finance Charges Paid 
Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities 

Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents (I + U + m ) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Reconc!l!atjop of Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 

lDl 
Cash on Hand 

,.... Bank Balances in Current Accounts 
( ~ Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

As per attached report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Firm Registration No: 135703W -Chartered Accountants ~~==~=,:::::-... ... 

~~ -t.s-.,. 
$ ~~ 
~ M .. No. ~} * 152318 : 
q It 

"'Z .... ., . ~.,Acf,.~~" 

SANKETSHAH 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 152369 

2015-2016 
(~) 

Amount Amount 

203 
-

-

8,623 
-

(203) 

(76,077) 

203 
(75,874) 

8623 
{67,251) 

(203) 

(67,454) 
172,330 
104876 

3,256 
101620 

104,876 

2014-2015 
(~) 

Amount Amount 

(1,461,266) 

1,357,380 
1,252,478 

21'6091858 
1,148,592 

50,751,549 

(58,040,097) 
-

(712881548) 
{6,1391956) 

(10,000) _____ _ 

10,300,000 
( 4,271,788) 

{101000) 

6,028,212 

(121,744) 
294,074 
1721330 

43,634 
128,696 

172,330 

For and on behalf of the board 

-
KUSHALSHAH 

Director 
DIN: 06843982 

L 

.l1 ~1. 0 
-- -'\..1--

MAULJK J. SHAH 

Director 
DIN: 02892175 



Halitious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MHZ007PLC17Z784 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

1. Corporate Information 
Halitious Developer Limited is an unlisted Public Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into business of constructing building. chawls, houses, 
appartments, tlat, residential township, commercial complex, warehouses, storage facilities, industrial park, SEZ, 
anywhere in India & abroad and transporting & carriage of goods and to provide storage and protection of goods 
against calamities. 

Z. Significant Accounting Policies 

I. Basis Of Preparation Of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been prepared and presented complying the section 134(5) of Companies 
Act, 2013 in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in accordance with 
the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. Guidance Notes and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

II. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles 
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Differences between actual 
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known I materialized 

Ill. Revenue Recognition 
A. Revenue from Construction Activity 

Revenue from sale of Finished Properties I Buildings is recognized on transfer of property and once 
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue recognition is 
postponed to the extent of significant uncertainty. 

Recognition of revenue relating to agreements entered into with the buyers, which are subject to 
fulfillment of obligation I condition imosed by the statutory authorities is postponed till such 
obligations are discharged. 

B. Interest 
Revenue is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable. 

C. Others 
Other Revenues 1 Incoines and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they earned 
or incurred. 

IV. Borrowing Costs 
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost o 
construction 1 development of such assets. The borrowing costs are incurred during the period in which 
activities, necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use or sale, are in progress, are allocated as 
aforesaid. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is 
interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Front-end fees, 
processing fees and other 'one time' charges are amortised over the period of the related borrowing. but 
not exceeding a period of three years. Other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss Account. 

V. SegmentReporting 
The company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Accounting Standards AS 
17-'Segment Reporting' is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is also 
operating within the same geographical segment. Hence, disclosures under AS-17 are not applicable. 
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Halitious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

VI. Taxations 
Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is 
made on the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The 
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account 
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depredation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a 
virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account o 
other timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. 
At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure 
realization. 

VII. Investments 
Investments are dassified into Current j Non Current and Long Term Investments. Current investments 
are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Long term investments are stated at cost. A provision for 
diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value of long term investments. 

VIII. Impairment of Assets 
The Carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. If there is any indication o 
impairment based on internal/external factors, i.e when the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an 
asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed or 
reduced if there has been a favourable change in the estimate of the recoverable amount. 

IX. Earning Per Share 
Basic earnings per share are caculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the 
purpose of calculating diluted earning per shares, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

X. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is 
present obligation as a result of past events and its probable there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statement. Contingent assets are 
neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements. 



Halltlous Developer Limited 

CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'S' As at As at 

NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ t 
Capital Investment in Partnership Firm (Refer footnote) 

M/s Rising Glory Developers- Capital 10,000 10,000 

Total 10,000 10,000 

Foomote: 
Details of Investments made in capital of parmership firm: 

Partnership Firm 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

Name of Partners Capital Profit Capital . Profit Sharing Ratio 
Sr Contribution Sharing Contribution 
No Ratio 

1 Hubtown Limited 10,000 20.00% 10,000 4.78% 

2 Ackruti SafeElJard System Private Limited 10,000 5.34% 10,000 4.76% 

3 Citygold Education Research Limited 10,000 5.34% 10,000 4.76% 

4 Citygold Fanning Private Limited 10,000 5.34% 10,000 4.76% 

5 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 10,000 5.34% 10,000 4.76% 

6 Halitious Developers Limited 10,000 5.34% 10,000 4.76% 

7 Headland Farming Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

8 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

9 Heet Builders Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.77% 

10 Twenty Five South Realty Limited - - 10,000 4.76% 
Hubtown Bus Terminal {Adajan) Private Limited 

11 up to 31st May 2015 - - 10,000 4.76% 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahemdabad) Private 

12 Limited up to 31st May 2015 - - 10,000 4.76% 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehsana) Private Limited 

13 up to 31st May 2015 - - 10,000 4.76% 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Surat) Private Limited up 

14 to 31st May 2015 - - 10,000 4.76% 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Private 

15 Limited up to 31st May 2015 - - 10,000 4.76% 

16 )oynest Premises Private Limited - - 10,000 4.76% 

17 Subhs!ddhl Builders Private Limited 10,000 5.33% - -
18 Sunstream City Private Limited 20,000 10.66% 10,000 4.77% 

19 Upvan lake Resort Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

20 Vega Developers Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

21 Whitebud Developers Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

22 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 10,000 5.33% 10,000 4.76% 

TOTAL 160,000 100.00% 210,000 100.00% 

NOTE'9' As at As at 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 

~ ~ 

Trade receivables 

Outstanding for a period exeeding Six Months (from the 
date they are due for payment) 46,719,631 46,719,631 

- Unsecured, considered good 

~~#~~ Total 46,719,631 46,719,631 
,.,_4- 00. 

41 ~ 

I~ ~2~:] "-~~ 
·~ 't>~h ts ~--?'ered Acc.o~ 



Halitious Developer Limited 
CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

NOTE'10' 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Balances with banks; 
On Current accounts 

Cashon hand 

NOTE'11' 

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Other loans and advances: 

Total 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision~ NIL, P.Y. ~NIL) 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2016 

t 

101,620 

3,256 

104,876 

As at 

31st March, 2016 

t 

113,433 
113,433 

As at 

31st March, 2015 

t 

128,696 

43,634 
172,330 

As at 

31st March, 2015 

t 

113,433 
113,433 
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CIN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2 016 

NOTE'12' Year Ended 
OTHER INCOME 31st March, 2016 

~ 

Other income 
Miscellaneous Income 
Share of loss from firm /JV (692) 

Total (692) 

NOTE'13' Year Ended 
OTHER EXPENSES 31st March, 2016 

~ 

Rates and Taxes 2,500 
Legal and Professional Fees 16,358 

orporate Governance Expenses (Filing fees) 10,033 
ther Expenses (Refer Footnote) 46,292 

Total 75,183 

Footnotes: 
Auditor's Remuneration (Included in other expenses) 31st March, 2016 

f 
Tax Audit Fees 
Statutory Audit Fees 15,000 
Limited Review 
Service tax on above 2,175 

Total 17,175 

NOTE'14' Year Ended 
FINANCE COST 31st March, 2016 

f 

Interest: 
Interest on delayed payment of taxes 203 

Total 203 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

f 
196 

36,613 

36,809 

Year Ended 
31st March,2015 

~ 

2,500 
39,642 
13,864 
84,689 

140,695 

31st March, 2015 
~ 

15,000 
15,000 
10,000 
4326 

44,326 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

~ 

1,357 380 
1,357,380 
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CJN: U70101MH2007PLC172784 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
NOTE'lS' 
EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) 

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic 
and diluted earning per share 

Profit I (Loss) after tax (~) 

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (Nos) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
at the end of the year (Nos) 

Earning per equity share (Nominal Value of share of ~ 10 /-each) 
Basic and Diluted 

NOTE'16' 
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

A. Name of related parties and description of relations 
Holding Company : Hubtown Limited 

11 Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

1 Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
2 ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 
3 Citygold Education Research Limited 
4 Jineshwar Multitrade Private Limited 
5 Citygold Farming Private Limited 
6 Asha Multitrade Private Limited 
7 Citywood Builders Private Limited 
8 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
9 GujaratAkruti-TCG Biotech Limited 

10 Devkrupa Buildtech Limited (Upto August 12, 2015) 
11 Headland Farming Private Limited 
12 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
13 Heet Builders Private Limited 
14 India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 
15 Joynest Premises Private Limited 

As at 
31•t March, 2016 

(76,078) 

100,000 

100,000 

(0.76) 

16 Sheshan Housing And Area Development Engineers Limited (Desubsidiarised Effective April1, 2015) 
17 Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 
18 Urvi Build Tech Limited 
19 Varna Housing Limited 
20 Vega Developers Private Limited 
21 Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 
22 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 

III Firm in which the Company is 
a Partner : M/s Rising Glory Developers 

B. Transactions with related parties 

Transaction 

Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Rising Glory Developers Partner 
- Fixed Capital 

10,300,000 
(10,300,000) 

10,000 
(10,000) 

692 

the Auditors. 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

(208,788) 

100,000 

100,000 

(2.09) 



Halltious Developer Limited 
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NOTE '17' 
PRIOR PERJOD INCOMES 

Particulars 

Reversal of Excess interest 

NOTE'18' 

As at As at 
31.03.2016 31.03.2015 

1252,478 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and 
Advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet 

NOTE'19' 
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date, as certified by the management and 
relied upon by the auditors. 

NOTE'20' 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped I rearranged/ recasted wherever considered necessary to conform to the 
presentation of current year's finanacial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Firm Registration No: 13S703W 
Chartered Accountants 

SANKETSHAH 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 152369 

For and on behalf of the board 

KUSHALSHAH 
Director 

DIN: 06843982 

MAULIK J. SHAH 
Director 

DIN: 02892175 
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L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

GANDHI MANSION, 3Ro FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P. 0., 
MUMBAI- 400 002 • Tel.: 2205 5916 • E-mail: ca_lalitkothari@yahoo.co.in 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements 

· We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the ·accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, and its loss and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the provisions of 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the 
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order; 

II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru les, 2014. 

1 (e) On the basis of the written represent;ations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 
from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 



(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B" 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any as at March 31, 2016 on its 
financial position in its standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPREITOR 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May, 2016 



H ANNEXURE A" REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE 
PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 
2016; WE REPORT THAT; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management 
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 9 on 
fixed assets to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)( c) of 
the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the registe r maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (ii i)(a), (iii)(b) and 
(iii) (c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 18 6. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent 
notified. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the said Order are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence 
the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Tax Deducted 
at Source, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues, including Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise and other material statutory dues, as applicable, w ith the appropriate 
authorities . . The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at Balance Sheet 
date, for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable is Rs. 
4,94,921/- relating to Income Tax Deducted at Source; 



(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess other than 
mentioned below: 

Statute and 
Financial Disputed Forum where dispute nature of Section 

dues Year Dues is pending 

Tncome Tax 
221(1) 2008-09 12,98,946 

Income Tax Appellate 
Act, 1961 Tribunal 

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any fi nancial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the 
provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, fu rther public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance 
of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed 
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
management; 

(xi) The Company has not paid f provided managerial Remuneration hence, the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the 
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required under Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party 
Disclosers specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit 
Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPREITOR 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May, 2016 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Heddle 
Knowledge Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control or financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate in ternal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

· effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable· assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements fo r external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financia l statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limita tions of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to fu ture periods a re 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financia l 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPREITOR 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May, 2016 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 

ClN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

Balance Sheet As at 31"' March, 2016 
Particulars 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 

Reserves and Surplus 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Long term trade payable 
Other Long term liabilities 
Long term provisions 

Current Liabilities 
Trade payables 

Other current liabilities 

Short-term provisions 

Total 

II. ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Fixed assets: 

Tangible assets 

Non Current Investments 

Long term loans and advances 

Current assets 

Current investments 

Inventories 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and bank balances 

Short-term loans and advances 

Other current assets 

Total 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 

Chartered Accountants ~0 :::::._~ 4 
Firm RegistratiOn No. 105313W(/'~Ab~ 

. (') 

I _,II (\-f ~ ..4tuMBA1 ~ ) 
* :::? 
~ ~~ LALIT KOTHARI 1'rr ;,'t)o; 

•llflj At.~'Y.. 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

-

Note No As at As at 

1 
2 

3 
4 
5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Anexure I 

1 to 36 

31st March, 2016 
\' 

100,000 

(86,331,381) 

(86,231,381) 

13,156,446 
66,157,400 

295,816 

227,581 

624,326,632 

80,167 
704,244,042 

618,012,66 2 

241,412 

16,000 

128,112,290 

128,369,7 02 

38,472 

304,315,902 

-
359,868 

179,171,383 

5,757,333 
489,642,960 
618,012,66 2 

31st March, 2015 
\' 

100,000 

(27,879,509 

(27,779,509) 

13,156,446 
66,157,400 

291,263 

195,838 

701,079,728 

724,227 
781,604,903 

753,825,394 

448,333 

16,000 

129,787,290 

130,251623 

36,579 

369,780,658 

15,000,000 

14,072,236 

185,081,085 

39,603,213 
623,573,771 
753,825,394 

For and on behalf of the board 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 

-=- Director 

~~NO~ DIN:03141200 

(~o~~ c~ 
• . ~ii BABU 1\ PAR~~H 

01~ Direc or - DIN: 00967 76 

\ 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

StatementofProfltand Loss for the ear ended 31'1 March 2016 
Particulars 

I. INCOMES 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 
Share of Loss from JV 

II. EXPENSES 

Cost of Operations 

Total 

Changes in inventories ofwork·in·progress 
Employee benefit expenses 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Financial costs 
Other expenses 

Loss before tax 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Tax for earlier year 

Loss before prior period adjustments 

Prior Period Adjustments 

Loss for the Year 

Total 

Earning per equity share {Face Value of~ 10 /·each) 

Basic and Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes on Financial Statements 

As per attached report of even date 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 201 6 

Note No 

18 

19 

20 
21 
22 

9 
23 
24 

25 

Anexure I 

1 to 36 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

f 

26,940,000 

3,919,691 

(5,191) 

30,854,500 

7,068,079 
65,464,756 

4,595,247 

206,921 

124,696 
11,833,020 

89,292,719 

(58,438,219) 

(5,845) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2015 

t 

32,150,000 

203,684,241 

(6,300) 

235,827,941 

8,336,247 
17,567,297 

5,217,768 

859,132 

202,781,281 
2,429,446 

237,191,171 

(1,363,230) 

(1,363,230) 

(1 36) 

For and on behalf of the board 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
Director 

DIN: 03141200 



Ut'ddle Knowltdge Prlv.liC Umfted 
CJN: U011Z1MH2006PTCI63518 

(ash FlowSiatementforlheyeaTrndcd 3 1u March1 20 16 

PlU'tlcutlrJ 31st ~larch, 2016 31stM>rch,201S 
Atnount Amount Amowu Amount 

(t ) (0 m (0 

L Ush HOW$ artslng fronl operating attlviUcs 
Ntt Lou befo~ t.u as Pf'r' Profit and l.oss Account (58.438,2 19) (1.363,230) 
Add I (Le<S) : 
Oepr«tlllion aod AmontutiQn 206,921 859,132 
AdvJDCCi .-nd other debll b;ll•mces wtlltt:.:n off 
Surplus/loss of sale of Foxed Assets . . 
Provision no loncer rtqui.-.d . 
Oo~od from CuiTI!otlnv~tmonts (1.893) (2,149) 
Suuclry l>alance wntttn off 1.816,839 . 
lntei"Ul Expen.o;;e 121,696 202.761.281 
Uablllt:lts Wl'ltte.n bJck to tht' extent no longer required (578,984) 

Prior P•rlod ~· (55.351) 
lntrrtSt I nco.IDI! '3.338.814' 120' 148.9871 

(1,826,586) 1.489,277 
OporoCing Profit Befort Working Capitol ChDnges (60,264,805) 126,0·•7 
Addi(Less) : 
(locrN>e) I o.a. .... 1n lnventori<s 65,464,756 17,567,297 
I..,.._ I (o.cr.a.>t) In Trode P•y•bl« & Other Llobillties (76,781,976) 21.768.276 
[lbcftil$C} I Decrease ln Tnde and ot11er receivables 3,195,46CJ 27.924,634 
Direct T .nes Paid 17,873,902 (20,575,230) 

9 752 251 49.684976 
NetC.Jh nowSn the course ofOprratfngAcdvlllcs (50,512,555) 49,811.022 

11. cash Oows arlslng rrom lnvest:tng ac:tJvities 
Inflow I (Outflow) nn account of 1 

Interest Income 36,92U83.8-I 166.986,715 
(lncro>Je) I o.cr....,ln p~ from long term ln\'HtmeUl . (16.0001 

Net Cosh now'" the course of lnvc...~Ung Activities 36,924,864 166,'170,715 
IIJ. CUh Oow.s arising from Financing .;u:tlvities 

tnOow 1 (Outflow) on ucnunt of : 

ID.W"t':~ot p~~kS (124,696) (202.791,281) 
o,v,dt'nd p31d . -
Net CoUll Oow in the courst' of Fin:1ndng Activities (124,696) (202,781.2Rl) 
~et t.ncreasem QSb and cas-h Equiv:altnts( 1•11•111) (13,712.368) 14,000,456 
Add: Bal;.ance at tb~ be1:;tnning oft he ytar 14,072,236 71.780 
Cash ond Cosh £qulva1cnL( at chc end oflhc year 359.068 14,072.236 

IV. ReconciU:n.ton otaJh nnd cash i'Cluivttlcnts (rerer note 15) 

c.uhonh;,nd 17,255 32.155 
~noes wuh b:mk 342,6H 14.040.081 
f.a.sb and t"A~h equlv:)tents at the end of the year 359,868 14.072,236 

M pt'f' ;a1uc:bed ~pon of e~n datf' 
f'or and on bbhalf of tho board 

FOR 1.). KOTUARJ & CO. 

c.~ Finn Rop.tr.Jnon No. 10S313W 
Clwrt<ttd Aammt;Jnts 

tt$}tEO~ ~ ..ao.1tt~ RAIF.EVAN PAMMRAN 

0 Dlr.-c:tor 
1....-- ~'?'7 -:- ,~ ~~ E DIN: 03141200 b ~v¥-'~ c> .., 

~ ·<::;<:;- (r LALIT xonwu ~~ " Proprietor 
RAn L ~AR£t<:U Membership No. 30917 

01re lor 
PI.Ja Mumba1 Dl~· 00967976 
03t<d: 20lh Mav 2016 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: UOU22MH2006PTC163518 

Annexure I 

1 Corporate Information 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. 
The main object of the company is to establish, manage, maintain, own, administer, promote, control, and subsidise educational 
institutions, computer literacy centers, schools, colleges, institutions for study and research, centers of learning. reading rooms, 
hostels, boarding houses, and other institutions for basic education. 

To construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, convert, adapt, improve, develop, operate and manage all sorts of Knowledge 
Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zones & related infrastructure facilities, commercial and social infrastructure facilities 
and amenities 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

I. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified by the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules read with Rule 7 to the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 in respect of section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financials statements are prepared under the historical cost conversion, on an accrual 
basis of accounting. The accounting policies applied are consistant with those used in the previous year. 

All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle 
of the Company as per the guidance as set out in the Schedule III, to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Operating Cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the specific project/ contract/ Service and 
extends upto the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective project 

II. USE OF ESTIMATES 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are 
known I materialized. 

Ill. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. Revenue from sale of properties /rights 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the company and the 
revenue can be reliabaly measured and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that 
there is buyer's commitment to make the complete payment 

B. Profit /(Loss) from partnership firms 1 association of persons: 
Share of profit I loss from partnership firms I association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the financial year of 
the Firm 1 AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited accounts, which is considered as a part of other 
operating activity. 

C. Interest 
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

D. Other Income 
Revenues /Incomes and Costs I Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are eamed or incurred. 

IV. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION/ AMORTISATION 
a. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation I amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

b. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method method on the basis of useful life of the asset in the manner specified 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro­
rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

V. INVENTORIES 
All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 

'Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and 
in other cases where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate 
directly to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as 
expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the 
respective project will be obtained. 

Cost included in inv ntory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land I r ights, value of FSI, 
expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

VI. Investments 
lnvesbnents are classified into Current I Non Current and Long Term Investments. Current investments are stated at lower 
of cost and fair value. Long term investments are stated at cost A provision for diminution is made to recognize decline, 
other than temporary, in the value oflong term investments. 

VII. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
A. Short term employee benefits 
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and Loss Account for 
the year in which the related service is rendered; 

B. Post Employment Benefits 
Defined contribution plans: Company's conOibution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the 
year in which the related service is rendered; 

Defined benefit plans: The present value of the gratuity obligation is determined based on an actuarial valuation using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately in the Profit 
and Loss Account In the case of gratuity which is funded with the Life Insurance Corporation of India, the fa ir value of the 
plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plan to recognise the obligation on net basis; 

C. Other long-term benefits (leave entitlement) are recognized in a manner similar to defined benefit plans; 

D. Termination Benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account for the year in which they are 
incurred 

VII. BORROWING COSTS 
Interests and other borrowing costs (including front end processing fees and related professional and other costs) 
attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of construction / development of such assets. Such 
allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. Front-end fees, processing fees 
and other 'one time' charges are amortised over the period of the related borrowing. but not exceeding a period of three 
years. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement. 

VIII. SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company has a single segment namely "Prmote and construction of Knowledge Parks & SEZ ,".Therefore the company's 
business does not fall under different business segments as defined by AS - 17 - "Segmental Reporting" issued by !CAL 
Further, the Company's operations are restricted to a single geographical segment 

IX. TAXATION 
ln Case, the company is liabile to pay income tax under Section 114 JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax 
paid in excess of normail tax is recognised as an assets ( MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for 
realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balancesheet date 

Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit Provision for current tax is made on the basis 
of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The deferred tax asset and deferred tax 
liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized, only if there is a virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing 
evidence. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization. 

X. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is 
charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired. The impairment Loss recognized 

XI. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is present obligation as a 
result of past events and its probable there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are 
disclosed in the financial statement .Contingent assets are neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements. 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE '1' 
SHARE CAPITAL 
AUTHORISED 

10,000 (P.Y.10,000) Equity Shares of~.lO/- each 
9,99,000 (P.Y.9,99,000) B% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares oH.100/- each 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP 
10,000 (P.Y.lO,OOO) Equity Shares ofUO/- each, fully paid 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

100,000 
99,900 000 

100,000,000 

100 000 
100,000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

100,000 
99 900 000 

100,000,000 

100,000 
100,000 

1.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year : 

Number of Shares at the Beginning 
Add/(Less) : 
Issue during the year 
Buyback during the year 
Redemption during the year 
Conversion durtng the year 
At the end of the reporting year (Nos) 

31st March, 2016 
Equity 

10,000 

10 000 

31st March, 2015 
Equity 

10,000 

10 000 

1.2 Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the 
ultimate holding company: 

Holding Company: 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 

1.3 Shareholders hold! ng more than five percent of holdings: 

Equity 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 

Total 

Total 

31st March, 2016 
Nos %of Holdings 

10 000 100 
10000 100 

31st March, 2016 
Equity 

10 000 
10000 

31st March, 2015 
Equity 

10,000 
10000 

31st March, 2015 
Nos % of Holdings 

10000 100 
10 000 100 

1.4 The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per 
share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders. 

NOTE'2' 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 
Loss for the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

NOTE'3' 
LONG TERM TRADE PAYABLE 
Retention Money Payable 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

{ ~) 

(27,879,509) 
{58,451,872) 

(86,331,381} 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

{~) 

13,156,446 
13,156,446 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

(26,516,279) 
[1,363,230) 

(27,879,509} 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

13,1 56,446 
13,156,446 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE '4' 
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES: 
Outstanding Llabili ty against Land purchased 

NOTE'S' 
LONG TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for leave benefits 

NOTE'6' 
TRADE PAY ABLES: 
Mlcro,Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer footnote) 
Trade Payable 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

( ~} 

66,157,400 
66,157,400 

As a t 
31st March, 2 016 

(~) 

295 816 
295,816 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

227 581 
227,581 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

66,157,400 
66,157,400 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

291263 
2~1,263 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

L~> 

195 838 
195,838 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medium 
Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppllers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been 
relied upon by the auditors. 

NOTE'?' 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Statutory Dues 
Advance received towards Projects (Refer footnote) 
Business Advance from Holding Company 
Advance from Customer 
Other payable 
Current account balance in joint Venture 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

m 
1,159,571 

94,400,000 
112,705,772 

30,900,000 
3,649,489 

381,511,800 
624,326,632 

Note: Advance received towards projects included Rs. 5,10,00,000 (P.Y. 5,10,00,000) from a related party 

NOTE '8' 
SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for Employee Benefits 
Provision for gratutiy 
(Net of plan assets~ 5,66,342; (P.Y. ~ 3,71,152/-) 
Provision for leave benefits 

NOTE'10' 
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Capital Investment in Partnership Firm (Refer footnote 10.1) 
M Is Rising Glory Developers 

Capital Investment in )oint Venture (Refer footnote 10.2) 
New Township Fintrade JV 

Total 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

4 5,542 
34625 

8 0167 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

10,000 

6 000 
16000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

20,570,059 
94,400,000 

173,173,695 
30,000,000 

1,428,674 
381,507,300 

701,079,728 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

106,259 
617 968 

724 227 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

10,000 

6000 
16000 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CJN: U01122MH2006PTC163S18 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
10.1 Details of Investments made in capital of Partnership firm and Joint Venture: 
Partnership Firm 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited 
Citvgold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 

~ 

Diviniti Proi ects Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Twentv Five South Realtv Limited 
Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal [Adajan] Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal rAhemdabadl Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal rMehsanal Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal [Surat] Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal rvadodara] Private Limited 
ovnest Premises Private Limited 

Sunstream City Private Limi~d 
Upvan lal<e Resort Private Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Whitebud Developers Limited 
Y antti Bulldcon Private Limited 
TOTAL 

10.2 Co· Venturer 
New Townshio Fintrade IV 

Name of Partners 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 
TOTAL 

NOTE'11' 
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Loans and Advances 

Unsecured, considered good: 
Advances to land owners 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 

NOTE ' 12' 
CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Investment In Mutual Fund · Daily Dividend Plan: 

31st March 2016 
Capital Profit Sharing 

Contribution Ratio 
10000 20.00% 
10,000 5.34% 
10000 5.34% 
10000 5.34% 
10,000 5.34% 
10 000 5.34% 
10 000 5.33% 
10,000 5.33% 
10 000 5.33% 

- -
10,000 5.33% 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

20000 10.66% 
10000 5.33% 
10000 5.33% 
10 000 5.33% 
10 000 5.33% 

160 000 100.00% 

31st March 2016 
Capital Profit Sharing 

Contribution Ratio 
6000 60% 
4000 40% 

10 000 100% 

Total 

State Bank of India Mutual Fund : C.Y. 22.969 (P.Y. 21.732) Units of~ 1675.03/- each 
Total 

NOTE '13' 
INVENTORIES 
Incomplete Project, at cost 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Total 

31st March 2015 
Capital Contr ibution Profit Sharing Ratio 

10000 4.78% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10,000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10,000 4.77% 
10000 4.76% 

- -
10000 4.76% 
10000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.77% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10 000 4.76% 
10,000 4.76% 

210 000 100.00% 

31st March 2015 
Capital Contribution 

6 000 
4,000 

10 000 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

79,787,290 
48,325,000 

128,112,290 

As a t 
31st March, 2 016 

(~) 

38472 
38472 

As a t 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

304,315,902 

304,315,902 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

60% 
40% 

100% 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

79,787,290 
50,000,000 

129,787,290 

As at 
31st Marth, 2015 

('~) 

36579 
36579 

As at 
31st Marth, 2015 

( ~) 

369,790,658 

369,780,658 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'14' 
TRADE RECEIVABLE 
Trade Receivables 

NOTE '15' 
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
Cash In Hand 
Balances With Bank 
In current Account 

NOTE '16' 
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANC.ES 
Other loans and advances: 
Adavnces for purchase of Land 
Business Advance to a related party 
Advances for project 
Security Deposits 
Prepaid expenses 
Loan to others 
Loan to employee 
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions of\' NIL; P.Y. \' 15,00,000} 

NOTE'17' 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
Other receivables 
Interest accrued and receivable on loan given 

NOTE'18' 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
Sale of Plot 

NOTE'19' 
OTHER INCOME 
Interest Received 
Dividend from current investment 
Sundry balances written back 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

17,255 

342,614 

359,868 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

( ~) 

101,Q44,646 
14,309,156 
50,000,000 

25,100 
25,070 

4,666,355 
1,000 

9,100 056 
1791171,383 

As at 
31st March, 2016 

{ \') 

2,752,400 
31004,933 

5,757,333 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

{ ~) 

26,940,000 
2619401000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

{~) 

3,338,814 
1,893 

578984 
3,919,691 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

15,000,000 

15 000 000 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( \') 

32,155 

14,040,081 

14,072,236 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

( ~) 

108,112,725 

50,000,000 
25,100 
8,337 

2,663 
26 932 260 

1851081,085 

As at 
31st March, 2015 

{ \') 

3,012,211 
36,591,002 

39,603,213 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

( \') 

32,150,000 
3211501000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(t'l 

202,148,987 
2,149 

1,533,105 

203,684,241 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'20' 
COST OF OPERATIONS: 
Land/Rights Acquired 
Approval and Consultation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

NOTE'21' 
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF WORK-IN-PROGRESS 
Opening Inventory 

· Incomplete Projects 
Less : Closing Inventory 

·Incomplete Projects 

NOTE'22' 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 
Salaries, bonus, etc 
Contribution to provident and other funds 

NOTE'23' 
FINANCIAL COSfS 
Interest: 
Interest on borrowings 
Interest on Delayed payment 

NOTE '24' 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Professional I Legal Fees 
Brokerage expenses 
Consultancy charges 
Stamp paper and Notary charges 
Hire charges 
Petrol exps 
Security expenses 
Sundry balance written off 
Other Expenses [Refer footnote) 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit Fees 
Limited Review fees 
Service Tax on above 

NOTE'25' 
EARNING PER SHARE (EPS} 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Net Loss as per Statement of Profit and loss available for Equity Shareholders before 1 after 
Weghted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.) 
Earning per equity share (Nominal Value per share~ 10/·each) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

( \') 

7,068,079 

7,068,079 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

( \') 

369,780,658 

304,315,902 
65,464,756 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

(f) 

4,280,999 
314 248 

4 ,595,247 

Year End ed 
31st March, 2016 

(f) 

124696 
124,696 

Year En ded 
31st March, 2016 

(f) 

448,478 
990,000 

6,387,967 
331,595 
462,970 
485,232 
506,198 

1,8 16,839 
403 741 

11,833,020 

35,000 

3 5 000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2016 

( f) 

(58,451,872) 
10,000 

(5,845) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

( \') 

39,769 
6,538,041 
1758 437 

813361247 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

( \') 

387,347,955 

)69,780,658 
17,567,297 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(\'} 

4,839,024 
378,744 

5,217,768 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

P'l 

202,298,016 
483 265 

202,781,281 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

(\'} 

1,278,035 
951,000 

10,615 

189 796 
2,429,446 

35,000 
15,000 

50 000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2015 

( \') 

(1,363,230) 
10,000 

(136) 



Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
GIN: U01122MHZ006PTC163518 

Notes to the financial statements fort be year ended 31st March, 2016 

NOTE'26' 
Related Party Disclosures (As Per As- 18) 

A. Name of related parties and description of relations 
Holding Company Hubtown Limited 
Fellow Subsidiary Company ABP Realty Advisors Private Limited 

Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited 
Citywood Builders Private Limited 
Devkrupa Build Tech Limited 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech Limited 
Halitious Developer Limited 
Headland Farming Private Limited 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
India Development And Construction Venture Capital Private Limited 
joynest Premises Private Limited 
Sheshan Housing And Area Development Engineers Limited (Up to April 1, 2015) 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 

Firm in which Company is a 
Partner 

joint Venture in which Company is . 
a Co-venture 

Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited 
Urvi Build Tech Limited 
Varna Housing Limited 
Vega Developers Private Limited 
Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited 

New Township Fintrade JV 

Town Planning Fintrade JV 

d B. Transactlons with relate parties 
Particulars Realted Party 

Business Advances Received/ Recovered/ Adjusted 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Twenty Five South Realty Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 

Business Advances etven/ Repaid/ Adl usted 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Interest Received 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

Share of loss from Joint Venture 
Town Planning Fintrade JV Joint Venture in which Company is a Co-venture 

Share of loss from Partnership Firm 
Rising Glory Developers Firm in which Company is a Partner 

Capital Contribution in Partnership Firm 
Rising Glory Developers Firm in which Company is a Partner 

Capital Contribution In I oint Venture 
Town Planning Fintrade JV joint Venture in which Company is a Co-venture 

Balance Payable as on 31st March, 2016 
Hubtown Limited Holding Company 

joynest Premises Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 

Rising Glory Developers Firm in which Company is a Partner 

Town Planning Fintrade JV joint Venture in which Company is a Co-venture 

Note: PrevJOuS year figures are g~ven m brackets 

NOTE'27' 
Advance paid for purchase of land of current year~- 18,79,00,015 (P. Y. ~- 18,79,00,015) includes as under. 

Particulars 

Advance aid to farme rs for which no a eement have been entered 

es pa id to farmers for which agreements have been executed in t he name of nominees of 3,576,170 

Amount (~) 

94,617,923 
(1 620 388 695) 

14,309,156 
[ -] 

24,150,000 
r 1 644 8oo,oool 

(-) 
(1,55,179,228) 

4,500 
(6,300) 

691 

f-1 

(-) 
(10 000] 

(-) 
(6000) 

112,705,772 
(173, 173 695) 

51,000,000 
_(51 000 000) 

10,691 
(10 000) 

381,511,900 
(381 507 300) 



Heddle Knowledge Private Llmlted 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163S18 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
NOTE '28' 

Advances received Include ~ 5,10,00,000/- received from joynest Premises Private Limited, a body incorporate with whom the 
company has entered into a Memorandum of understanding for the joint Development of an integrated Townships 1 SEZ at Panvel. 

NOTE '29' 
The Company has entered into New Township fintrade jV and agreed to transfer Land admeasuring to 40 Acres (approx.) along with 
the amounts received against the said land in the earlier years as per the terms and conditions agreed upon. 

NOTE'30' 
The company is in the process of acquisition of land / properties. Some of the lands purchased standing in the name of nominees of 
Company are pending for necessary permissions from the Revenue Department 

NOTE '31' 
a) The company has received permissions under Bombay Tenancy AgMcultural Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for 
acquiring AgMcultural Land in excess of ceiling limit upto 621.0801 hectors in the taluka Khalapur District Raigadh, Maharastra which 
are valid till year 2010 and july 2012 respectively. 

b)The permissions under Bombay Tenancy and AgMcultural Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for acquiring AgMcultural Land 
in excess of ceiling limit are subject to certain conditions imposed by the Government which state that the approvals /permissions 
under MLR Code, Restoration of Land to ST Act, BTAL ACT, Forests Acts, CRZ, NDZ and other similar laws wherever applicable are 
necessary. 

NOTE'3Z' 
Debtors, Creditors and Loans and advances include confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments and are considered 
payable/realizable, as the case may be. 

NOTE '33' 
In the opinion of The Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current and Non Current Assets, Current and Non Current 
Liabilities and Loan and Advances continue to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the balance 
sheets. 

NOTE'34' 
The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's 
management Is, however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary ln nature as the Company has made strategic Investments in 
certain assets 1 projects, the proceeds of which would when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that 
extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

NOTE '35' 
CONnNGENT LIA.BILinES rNOT PROVIDED FOR]: 

Particulars 

Claims ae:ainst the Comoanv, not acknowlede:ed as debts on account of:· 
Properties purchased pending registration and other formalities under different statutes, for 
which confirmations are pending. with regards to consideration paid for the purchase ofland 
throul!h ae:I!J"egator. 
Income Tax matters under appeal with !TAT for the Financial Year 2008-09 

NOTE'36' 
Figures for the previous year have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants _,_::::::::;:;:;::::~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 20th May 2016 

£In t) 
As at As at 

31st March, 31st March, 
2016 2015 

Amount not Amount not 
ascertainable at ascertainable at 

present present 
1298946 1298946 

For and on behalf of the board 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 



Heddle Knowlede:e Pr ivate Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 

• 9 FIXED ASSETS (In~ 
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

As on Additions Deductions/ As at As on Provided Deductions/ Upto As at As at 
PARTICULARS 1st April, during Adjustments 31st March, 1st April, during the Adjustments 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, 

2015 the period 2016 2015 period 2016 2016 2015 

Vehicles 2,490,855 - - 2,490,855 2,190,494 100,883 - 2,291,377 199,478 300,361 
Computer 426,116 - - 426,116 426,116 - - 426,116 - -
Furniture and Fixtures 926,340 - - 926,340 842,470 41,936 - 884,406 41,934 83,870 
Office Equipments 1,059,760 - - 1,059,760 995,658 64,102 - 1,059,760 - 64,102 
Gra nd Total 4,903,071 - - 4,903,071 4,454,738 206,921 - 4,661,659 241,412 448,333 
Previous Year 4,903,071 - - 4,903,071 3,595,606 859,132 - 4,454,738 448,333 1,307,465 

. ''· 
:: ~ . ... 



• Heddle Knowled e Private Limited 
CIN: U01122MH2006PTC163518 

INCOMPLETE PROJECT AS ON 31st MARCH. 2016 
SITE - PANVEL 

Particulars As on 
1st April. 2015 

Civil Construction Expenses 
Civil Construction Expenses 61,359.112 

Other Construction Cost 
Labour Charges 45,738 
Land Development Expenses 3,164 649 
Transport Charges 95 403 

Purchase R~ster 
Other Purchase 10 079,534 

Consultants 
Consultancy Charges 26 843,486 
Professional Fees I Comission 3 434 620 
Architect Fees 361 624 
Survey char~es 4708 

Land Cost 
Plot 202,711877 

Interest and Finance Cha~es 
Interest Paid 22307,473 

Indirect Expenses 
Advertisment Expenses 4164 

Bank Charges 70094 
Books & Periodicals 1957 
Conveyance 170 059 
Electricitv Expenses 62 749 
Electrical Expenses 30 201 
House Keeping Expenses 2,985 723 
Hire Charges 3 063 002 
Insurance 205128 
Loading/ Unloading Charges 2 058 
Petrol Expenses 1,833 680 
Postage & Courior Charges 7 813 
Photo Exoenses 2138 
Printing & Stationery 310123 
Office & Miscelleneous Expenses 356867 
Office Rent 1,112 563 
Repairs & Maintanance 667 537 
Staff Welfare Expenses 142 880 
Securitv Expenses 741 300 
Tea Coffee, Lunch Expenses 280,535 
Tele_phone & Mobile ~enses 498,130 
Travelling Expenses 27,753 
Vehicle ~enses 649,582 
Photocopy Charges 280 646 
Internet & Network Charges 55,398 

Manpower Expenses 
Salary 25,810 357 

IOIAL 369,780 658 

~·~01'~ 

~r;:J. ~~~ MUMg~l 
~!t•h-·,l "A::t, ·; X. -

(In~) 

Addition during Transfer to As on 
the period P&LA/c 31st March 2016 

- 9,271 008 52,088,104 

- 6,911 38827 
- 478,160 2,686 488 
- 14 415 80988 

- 1522 960 8,556 574 

- 4 055 896 22,787,590 
- 518,951 2,915 669 
- 54,639 306 985 
- 711 3 997 

7,068,079 47 220 032 162 559 924 

- 3 370 530 18,936,943 

- 629 3 535 

- 10 591 59,503 
- 296 1661 
- 25,695 144,364 
- 9 481 53 268 
- 4 563 25 638 
- 451,126 2,534,598 
- 462,802 2,600,200 
- 30 994 174,134 
- 311 1747 
- 275 164 1 558,516 
- 1 180 6 632 
- 323 1,815 
- 46,858 263 265 
- 53,921 302,946 
- 168 102 944,461 
- 100,861 566,676 
- 21 588 121,292 
- 112,006 629,294 
- 42 387 238,148 
- 76,402 421728 
- . 4 193 23 560 
- 98 148 551,433 
- 42,404 238,242 
- 8 370 47,028 

3,970,227 21840,130 

7 068,079 72,532,835 304,315,902 

---. 

@ ~ ~ ~~( . ~ \ <un~ 




